LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
Tuesday, 22 June, 1982

Time — 8:00 p.m.

MR. SPEAKER, Hon. J. Walding: Order please. The
discussion on the Rules before the House at 5:30.

The Honourable Member for Virden on a point of
order.

MR. H. GRAHAM: Mr. Speaker, on the same point of
order that was raised at 5:30 or was in discussion at
5:30, if | may speak to it before you make your ruling.

| have, over the supper hour, done some research
and | have failed to find any reference in past history of
this House where the Premier ofthe province has ever
delegated the authority to anyone to speak for unlim-
ited time on a grievance. | admit that | may have
missed some points in the records of the House, but
so far, | have found nothing in that field.

SPEAKER’S RULING

MR. SPEAKER: | thank the honourable members for
theiradvice. | would like to give aruling on the matter.

The discussion on the Rules at 5:30 appears to
hinge on whether the discussion of a Matter of Grie-
vance is a debate and if so, whether the Minister of
Energy and Mines was entitled tospeak foran unlim-
ited time.

Beauchesne’s Fourth Edition in referring to Grie-
vances says in Citation 234, in part, “The debate in
such a case is limited by the rules respecting any
orderpassed bytheHouse forthe purpose of regulat-
ing its discussions.”

Our own Rule 36(1) says that, “The following
motions are debatable, that is to say, every motion

(a) standing on Orders of the Day.”

These would appear to indicate that the grievance
procedure is in fact a debate. Since, as a principle,
debate only occurs in the House whenamotionis put
before the members, the House will surely recall that
the motion put to them by the Speaker is, that, Mr.
Speaker, do now leave the Chair, etc., etc.

Given that the discussion was in fact a debate, our
Rule 33(2) would appear to enable the Honourable
Minister of Energy and Mines tospeak for his Leader
and consequently enjoy unlimited time.

If the foregoing is not a strong enough argument,
parity and fair play would indicate that a Member of
the Treasury Bench reply tothe Leader oftheOpposi-
tion's remarks.

| therefore concludethattheMinister of Energy and
Mines is entitled to speak on a grievance without time
limit.

The Honourable Minister of Energy and Mines.

HON.W.PARASIUK: Mr.Speaker, | risetorespondto
the Leader of the Conservative Party with some con-
siderable regret and disappointment. I'm a politician,
as we all are in this Assembly, and we should and are
used to slings and arrows directed to us personally,
but we have just witnessed the Leader of the Opposi-
tion, a former Premier, who got up and played the
cheapest and shoddiest of politics. He did so, |
believe, at the expense of ongoing negotiations and
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discussions. | getconcerned aboutthat when we have
the former Premier of the government coming in here
and tabling a document dealing specifically with
negotiations and then using that document to do a
running smear attack on civil servants. Mr.
Speaker, . . .

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. The Leader of the
Opposition on a point of order.

HON. S. LYON: The Deputy Minister of Energy and
Mines, Mark Eliesen, he is not a professional civil
servant. He's a party hack hired by these people. He's
notaprofessional civil servantat all. He's aparty hack.
He's one of your Reds.

MR.SPEAKER: Order please. TheHonourable Minis-
ter of Energy and Mines.

HON.W.PARASIUK: Thisiswhatconcernsme when
we have this man come in here, usually in theevening
session | might add, and then starts again the charac-
ter assassination of an individual saying, this man’s a
hired socialist; that this man is a Red; patronage peo-
ple, hesays. Mr. Speaker, | ask, istheageofMcCarth-
yism dead when we have an individual like that in the
Legislature?

You know, he reminds me of some politicians that
you see and | had hoped that these were caricatures
actually. The fellow who gets up and starts attacking
another person and calls him every name under the
sunandthen, whenthatperson runs out of breath and
runs outofthought, addstheclincher; he'sa Commie
or he'sapinko. That was the age of McCarthyism; that
was the smear tactic. What did it do to the calibre of
the bureaucracy of the United States? Whatdid it do
to the foreign service? What did it do to the army?
What did it do to the Civil Service internally? We had
thatwholething happen in the 50s. We had that whole
thing happen in North America in the 50s and this
person, who should know better, comes in and con-
stantly and consistently tries the smear attack.

Now, Mr. Speaker, surely the people of Manitobaon
November 17th rejected most definitively that
approachtopolitics. Mr. Speaker, | saythatitisimpor-
tant that we get out of the gutter, that we debate the
issues, that we discuss them, but we don't get into it
with smears on deputies or smears on teams of staff
and leaking documents, bringing in documents.
Bringing in the documents, Mr. Speaker, and then
saying and attributing everything totally to those indi-
viduals as if somehow there is this malicious conspi-
racy under way within the administration of the day
todaytosomehow rip apartthese projects that existed.

Now, what | find so astonishing about this, in rela-
tion to some of the items that were raised by the
Leader of the Opposition, isthat| was concerned, and
| still am very concerned, about the Western Intertie. |
indeed talked to the Leader of the Opposition off the
record about three-and-a-half months ago, indicating
—(Interjection)— fine. | raised it, | told you specifi-
cally what the item was of major concern. | did that
becausel| felt it's importantthat we develop a nonpar-
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tisan approach to try and get these projects pulled
together in good shape. | indicated to him what | felt
the major weakness of the Inter-Tie agreement was. |
indicated that | felt an agreement that commits Mani-
toba to build a Hydro dam at a fixed cost whereby
Manitoba would be responsible 100 percent for any
overruns and if you look at the history of Hydro devel-
opment, we've had overruns. You know, here we are.
That was a commitment on the part of that govern-
ment and | said, that was something that the people cf
Manitoba couldn't accept because if there were over-
runs the taxpayers of Manitoba or the consumers of
Manitoba Hydro would have to pay that overrun and
pay it as it's amortized over a full 35-year period.
Imagine if we had an overrun of $200 million, $300
million or $400 million at 18 percent, who would be
responsible for that?

So. | raise that. | told that in confidence to him
because | cared. | thought it was very important that
we not undermine that. | have never ever raised and
tabled documents relating to any of the mega project
negotiations. | did not want to jeopardize them in any
way. shape. or form. | did not want to and | think the
experience holds here. | didn't table the document
today. It was the Leader of the Opposition who did
that; whousedthattoridicule staff in particular. | have
said that it is important that we try and pursue those
mega projects, even though the times are extremely
difficult; that we would negotiate in good faith. That is
what we had said we would do and we indeed are
pursuing that, but at the same time we would nego-
tiateto try and insure a fair deal, not only for today but
for future generations.

We said that is a very good principle in terms of
negotiation and, with respect to the Power Grid, we
said that we should indeed look at it in terms of one
province not havingto subsidizetheothertwo provin-
ces. | think that's a fair position to take. Secondly, we
said that there should be a fair and equitable sharing
ofrisk and sharing of benefit, and that's the approach
that we took when we reviewed the projects and we
had some concerns.

The Leader of the Oppositionis the one who forced
the issue, tabled the documents, tabled them in a
particular way that I'll get back to later, which in a
sense almost puts them in the position of arguingand
debating against Manitoba's interests. That's what |
found so surprising. He took a document to the Sas-
katchewan Power Corporation; he took that and he
used that as his focus of argument against what the
Manitoba Government had been doing.

Now, | find it amazing that we would have the
Leaderofthe Opposition againtryto negotiate, notto
protecttheinterestsof Manitoba, but rather somehow
to promote theinterests of those people whom we are
negotiating against. The Leader of the Opposition has
just said that somehow the negotiating position
adopted by the Manitoba Government was in fact de-
veloped by party hacks, and | want that on the record
because that is the position that he has been taking
consistently with respect to every one of the negotia-
tions. | will come back to that, Mr. Speaker. I'll come
back to that because it is so wrong and that's why |
find that the character assassination of the Leader of
the Opposition is so unjustified. But first, before | get
to the mega projects, | want to talk a bit about the
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expectations. | wanttotalk about the so-called bequest
that government gave to us. You know, to you the
torch we pass.

{t'sinteresting. When | assumed office, Mr. Speaker,
| walked into my office; there literally wasn't a file in
sight. The Minister had taken allof his files. Now, we
had aspecial assistant who wasinvolved in so many of
these activities. He really didn’t take many of his files;
apparently, he shredded them. That's the bequest;
that's the turnover.

So it did take us some time, Mr. Speaker, looking
through different sources, different parties, to put
together the information relating to various of these
negotiations. We didn’'t want to publicize that too
much because we certainly didn't want to contact
Alcan or any of these companies and say, “Psst.
Would you please send us your package of files
because we don't have them.” But slowly we put
together what | call a reconstitutedsetof filesand we
were ablethen, in the process, to develop negotiation
strategies which we are continuing.

Now, one of the things that happened is that when
we were looking forthese fileswesawthatthere were
some files on a disc in a word processor. We have a
government word processor in my office. So we
pulled thosefiles off thediscs and we found that some
ofthem were abitmorerecentand we could then add
to the files, because what's important in negotiations
is getting some chronology of what's taken place;
what was the starting position; what was given, what
wasn't given; what's the give-and-take over a period of
time.

The other thing that | found astounding about these
so-called brilliant businessmen over there is that they
never took notes; they never kept records; it was all ad
hoc. It was all almost word of mouth, backs of enve-
lopes. There were consulting studies done from time
to time, but there weren't systematic consistent notes
of what had taken place. But what was really interest-
ing, in terms of the material that we pulled out, was a
particular document and it relates very much to
expectations and the approach of the government in
its last days.

It's interesting to note that this is called “Riel and
City Telephone Interview Results™ - it's a poll. It's a
poll run conceivably, privately or publicly, | don't
know, but certainly it was on the government word
processor, Mr. Speaker. That's where that poll was by
the Conservative Party. It'saninteresting thing, it says
the attached is the result of a telephone interview
survey commissioned by Don Craik and carried out
August 17th to 22nd, 1981; 200 calls in Riel Consti-
tuency and 300 in the remainder of the City of Win-
nipeg. Now, the interesting thing about the poll is it
was carried out between August 17th and August
22nd. Note the date - before September. Comebackto
that, also on a government machine. | won't go
through all of the material here.

It's interesting, sure. It's here. You know, one of the
things that's in it, one of the pointsis PremierLyonis
strongly disliked by some respondents; we knew that.
We didn't have to commission a poll for that. It showed
that, Mr. Speaker. This is the interesting thing, and |
don't want to take too much time goinginto it because
itrehashes so many different things. It's an attitudinal
survey, a poll. If peoplewanttoseeit, they might take
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alook atit. They might find it interesting, but there are
some interesting pieces when you get to Page 10. It
said, in Riel, the figures were PC, 39 percent; NDP, 28
percent; Libs, 9 percent, Progressives, 2 percent.
Removing the ‘don’t knows' and the ‘refusals’ - which
isatricky thingin polling as a number of people have
found out subsequently - the PCs would get 50 per-
cent of the vote; the NDP would get 36 percent of the
vote. Itsaid that in a citywide sample, the preferences
were as follows: NDP, 33 percent; PC, 30 percent.
Removing the don't knows and refusals gives us a
figure of NDP, 45 percent; PC, 40 percent.

What it goes on to say is, “This represents a loss of
PC supporttothe NDP in Winnipeg possibly sufficient
to put at risk such seats as Radisson, St. James and
Wolseley without much chance of compensating
gains; however, it is impossible to project with any
certainty the outcome in individual constituencies
from a citywidesample.” The conclusions were, “Don
Craik is the clear favorite in Riel and would win re-
election; however, the party has lost some ground in
Winnipeg and some seats we currently hold might be
lost.” It's a warning at the end of August. “The PCs
benefit from the optimism generated by the mega
projects,” saysthereport, “support for their stand on
the constitution, theirimage of efficient, decisive gov-
ernment and fears about the NDP and its weak leader-
ship. We lose ground on account of the performance
ofthe economy. Further, the Premieris not especially
popular,thoughthe PC team may be anassetin com-
parisonwiththe peopleinthe NDP. My sense of it allis
that an election in the near future would be a pretty
pretty close-run thing. The party would, however,
benefit from further developments with respect to the
mega projects, a favourable Supreme Court ruling, or
any amelioration in the economy such as a decline in
the interest rates.”

Sowhat happened after this conclusion was reached
in a poll that the party would benefit from further
developments with respect to the mega projects? Did
they indeed sign the agreements? Did they sign the
agreements, bringthem forward to the general public
and say, here, we are running on the record of our
signed agreements? That's what we seek election for;
we have said that this isvirtually our total and com-
pletethrust withrespecttothe future. They'resigned;
they're sealed; they're here. Judge us on them now.

That's not what they did. No. Boom, Mr. Speaker.
We had the mega projects advertising paper through-
out the month of September. What did we do at that
time, Mr. Speaker? The whole approach was to raise
expectations with respect to projects that were not
signed, sealed, and delivered and spend public money
to do so, Mr. Speaker. They had the shame, the audac-
ity - they wouldn’t even use their own party money to
do that.

If you can recall at that time, we had this strange
situation of government ads running and then we had
the Premier, at the time, coming on television saying
virtually the same thing. Remember? They were pul-
ling these things together, and the interesting thing is
that the advertisement, interrupting MASH - sittingon
a gold mine - that whole approach of raising the
expectations. You know, the sad thing is that, as the
Minister of Energy and Mines, | had to pick up the
Special Warrants to pay for all that advertising that
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was done by those people.

The thing that | find so interesting, for this total of
$144,000 in advertising, is that somehow the Depart-
ment of Energy and Mines signed a contract with a
company called Scott and Withrow Incorporated.
Remember the group from Toronto that used to fly in
andouttoadvisethePremier, write hisspeeches? But
somehow this group - because they don’t have any
hacks, Mr. Speaker; they don't do anything like that -
this group wentoutandcommissioned a series of ads
that cost the taxpayers of Manitoba $144,000 and, Mr.
Speaker, contributed very directly - that's the min-
imum cost - | suggest, to their defeat because the
people saw that as a very cynical approach. But the
interesting thing is that it had some negative effects,
had some terrible, negative effects.

If this advertising campaign was taking place, gee,
something might be happening and some people
went out, and | had the situation in Balmoral when |
went there where | talked to the peopleand somebody
said, I've started a subdivision in Balmoral. Another
personsaid, | thought1'd get my store working better.
| said, well, what's happened. They said, well, you
know, over the course of the last four years, our econ-
omy came virtually to a standstill. | said, well, did you
have anything happening before that period of time?
They said, yes, there was steady growth in that area.
It's interesting; this was at a public meeting. | could
appreciate their concerns. Imagine having your
expectations raised like that with a whole set o f gov-
ernment advertising, publicly paid for, paid for by the
taxpayers, raising a number of expectations very
prematurely and getting people, some people, think-
ingthat despite the fact that things were very bad over
a four-year period, that somehow mega projects that
weren't signed, sealed and delivered would somehow
be everyone's salvation. That was the approach of that
government in its dying days.

You know, there's this whole debate that's taken
place through this Session that somehow the NDP
snucktheelection, stoletheelection. Peoplerantand
rave; theywantto fightthe election over and over and
overagain.Letmetellyouwhenyoucouldtellagood
signthattheywerelosingthe election.ltwaswhen,in
1979 in the Federal campaign, the NDP went from 2
seats to 5 seats. Then in the 1980 Federal campaign,
the NDP wentfrom 5 seats to 7 seats.

We had —(Interjection)— good for us, that's right.
Butlet me tell you, they weren't saying ‘good for you’
then. They were scared; they were terrified, running
terribly scared. We sensed this when we went out to
the general public and we went throughout Manitoba
and talked to the people and consulted with them
directly. We sensed that there was most definitely a
dissatisfaction with a government that had developed
a state-of-seige mentality, a bunker mentality; that
wouldn'tgo outand talk to the people. They really had
decided that they already were losers.

The interesting thing is that they didn't go out and
talk to the people. | get told that | screwed up my
courage and went out to Balmoral. Let me tell you, |
wentout to Balmoral - I didn'tsend out ads - | went out
directly toBalmoral tospeak tothe people, justasthe
PremierofManitobawentouttoLeaf RapidsandLynn
Lake, justaslwentoutto ThePas.|wasn't putting out
ads;lwasn’'traising those false expectations. We went
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out to the people and we talked about the economic
and social reality of what we have before us and we
told the truth. We did not hype up advertising; we did
nothypeuptheimpressionthatsomehow something,
some nirvana, was going to happen tomorrow.

So when we say, if you were so certain, why didn’t
you take the time? Why spend government money on
advertising? Why hype it all up ahead of time? —
(Interjection) — taxpayers’ money, that's right. Why
do that if you were so certain? Surely, that defies
logic. Granted, there were efforts of a very sincere
nature undertaken by the previous administration.
These things weren't just manufactured and | will say
that there were sincere attempts, but we are living in
very very, difficult, unpredictable times and there
wasn't the certainty about that. But they were very
nervous at electiontime and that pollis ratherinterest-
ing because of the polls from my predecessor, the
person who was handling the mega projects, the per-
son who commissioned all the advertising. Now, we
have those expectations out there and the Conserva-
tives are desperately trying fulfili that notion they were
creating through the government advertising, through
taxpayers' paid advertising, when in fact the eco-
nomic reality around us is dictating that other events
will occur.

Tell me wherein North America, at leastin Canada
and | think in North America, do we have any mega
projects taking place. Thereis aneconomicreality out
there that we, as people in this Assembly, have to
recognize and understand. Thatdoesn'tmean thatwe
turn our back on them. That meansthat we still pursue
them; we try to accomplish them. But it certainly
doesn't mean thatgooutinto The Pas, say,andraisea
whole set of expectations out there. We sat down with
theMayor; wesatdown with the workers; wesatdown
with the Community Council there. We sat down with
those people and we talked about economic reality
and the fact that we would, over the course of the next
year, try and develop thisinvestmentto try and stabil-
ize that plant over the long run. We were very open
with the people there. We indeed have said that we
would negotiate any of these things in good faith
within the context of the reality that we live in, the
economic reality.

| almost sense this sense of glee on the side of the
people opposite when economic reality dictates that
certain things may be postponed without any definite
date as to when they mightresume. | find virtual gloat-
ing on the other side. Yet, we have had the Alsands
Project not happen; we've had the Alaska Highway
Project not happen; we've had the Cold Lake heavy oil
development not happen; we've had even the devel-
opment on the West Coast not happen and certain
onesontheEastCoast. Weareinavery severe time of
economic recession. We aren’t trying to mislead the
public in any way, shape or form, but the thing that |
findinteresting is that somehow the Opposition wants
to refight that election over and over and over again,
rather than pointing out and trying to relate to the
reality of the fact that a lot of these projects are,
indeed. in a difficult state.

Now | want to talk about what the Leader of the
Opposition tabled today. This was a letter from Bob
Monker to Marc Eliesen, with acopy toBob Steel, who
is the Alberta staff lead-person with respect to the

negotiation team. Having tabled that letter, he then
read it out and proceeded to launch, as | said, a char-
acter assassination. On the staff, he talked about the
team and especially the Deputy. Why? Why would he
do that? Obviously to score the cheap political points
and, again, the cheap political hack, the socialist
friend, implying that everything that was put in that
letter was somehow grew out of his head, only out of
his head —(Interjection)— that's right, say it again.
Butletmetell you, | wanttotablesomedocumentsin
this respect because | think it's important to try and
provide the balance, because what we've had here is
the Leader of the Opposition table a letter - I'll be
coming along to the courts as | go - and take the
position of the writer with his editorial comments at
the same time.

Now what we did, we've had economists do a
reviews; lawyers do reviews, but | justwantto focusin
ononemajoroneand the letters thatrelatetoit. It's a
letter from Mr. Blachford, President and Chief Execu-
tive Officer of Manitoba Hydro to Mr. Mark Eliesen,
Deputy Minister of Energy and Mines, February 8th,
1982: “Following the January 26th Regional Meeting,
| agreed to have prepared further data to assist in
Manitoba’'s approach. Enclosed are the following
data: (1) Limestone Estimates, a letter from D.S.
DuncantolL.D. Blachfordand attachments. We will be
discussingearlynextweekthe advisability of perform-
ing arisk analysis of the Estimates and (2) " - thisis the
part I'll table here - “Outstanding Concerns: a sum-
mary of issues in priority as seen by management,
inciuding an estimated benefit of revisions to Mani-
toba, plustwopagesof explanation of these. Staff are
now preparing drafts of how Manitoba Hydro sug-
gests the paragraphs of the draft Interim Agreement
might be worded and we'll talk to you further next
week on this.

“Summary, Outstanding Concerns. Issue in order
of priority: Limestone costs; resolution, change
wording of Clause 1.1.5 to tighten sharing of risks
between all parties; estimated benefit of revisions to
Manitoba 1980 - millions of dollars, reduces risks of
additional costs over $328 million plus 10 percentin
March 1st, 1981." What had happened thereis that this
is avalid concern on the part of Hydro. It's what was
sent onto Saskatchewan and Alberta. This is the con-
cern that we just heard the Leader of the Opposition
mock andridicule, a particular socialist tact. Isn't that
interesting? You know, the point about that is, why
would they bring it forward? Was it a fair and reason-
able note that if there were any overruns - and, you
know, who can predict what'll take place with respect
to construction costs between now and 1988 or 1989
that Manitoba would be left holding the bag, 100 per-
cent. That's what you agreed to. Limestone output
wastheseconditem of concernintheorderofpriority
- by some socialist act or by the management of
Hydro? “Resolution, change clause to reflect net
change in power production attributable to Limestone
or increase payment to greater than Limestone cost,
estimated benefit revisions to Manitoba $65 million or
greater.”

Now, Mr. Speaker, | have these valid concerns being
raised and peoplearesaying, thesearethingsthat you
should close youreyestoandl'ligetinto this a bit later
as to what the meaning of this is.
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The third item is sharing of benefits limited to 1.5
times Manitoba's costs and Hydro says that the reso-
lution here should be that there should be a 50-50 split
and this should automatically occur after recovery
period, rather than require or request to party to
change price. The estimate there, because we're talk-
ing about the future which is hard to predict, the esti-
mate by Hydro, and they have a range, is $30 million to
$500 million. It'sareal number, obviously, itshould be
looked at.

The fourth area was reliability benefits, put forward
again by Manitoba Hydro. Some reference to these
shouldbeincluded in thisagreement and a method of
application is suggested, estimated benefit of revi-
sions to Manitoba, up to $220 million.

Now, those are points put forward by technical
people, put forward realistically through the negotia-
tion team —(Interjection)— yes, I'm going to table it.
I'm prepared to table that —(Interjection)—yes, it is
fair. | think that's fair in that sense and | think it's
interesting to see what - you know, if you knew all that
—(Interjection)— that's right. I'll file this because —
(Interjection)— he said he knew that when he made
that silly speech. He in fact says now, yes, that he
knew all these things when he in factmade his speech
condemning Manitoba.

Now, | am going toread into therecord two letters
that really, Mr. Speaker, are based on that documenta-
tion that indeed was provided to us by the manage-
ment of Manitoba Hydro, who | think had integrity
when they put that forward. The letter is dated March
4thto Mr. Robert Moncur, President of Saskatchewan
Power Corporation, 2025 Victoria Avenue, Regina,
Saskatchewan. “Dear Mr. Moncur,” and I'll read the
letter because | think this is important to deal with the
particular item that was tabled today by the Leader of
the Opposition. There were, | think, a lot of character
assassinations. In a sense, the position of Saskatche-
wan was taken —(Interjection)— fair, and that's
understandable and | guess disappointing, but not
unexpected from the Leader of the Opposition. Now,
the statement says, “Atthe lastmeeting of the Western
Provinces Electric Inter-Tie, some issues were raised
that require further discussion, prior to the scheduled
meeting of Ministers on March 15th, 1982, in Calgary.
It is hoped that this letter will clarify the Government
of Manitoba's position on these issues.

“First, it is important to emphasize that Manitoba
wishes to proceedto a finalized Interim Agreement on
the Inter-Tie as quickly as possible. We believe an
Interim Agreement would resolve certain parameters
on the project as well as establish a mechanism for
dealing with other equally important factors in a
futuretime schedule. However, it is important that this
Interim Agreement provide for a fair and equitable
sharing of the benefits and costs of all three provin-
ces. To achieve this objective, we believe that a small
number of modifications to the draft Interim Agree-
ment are necessary. Moreover, we believe that these
changes all fall within the intent and the spirit of
Cluuse 2 of the draft agreement, which intends a
favourable impact on power rates in all of the
provinces.

“The modifications we propose are the following:-

Limestone cost. The single largest item in the Inter-
Tieprojectis the capital cost of the Limestone Gener-
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ating Station. We believe the costs included here must
be the actual and reasonable costs of construction.
The base cost of Limestone at $3928 million plus 10
percent,” - that's 1980, which really has a price well
over $2 billion by the time you have the actual expen-
diture accumulated by 1988, “may be subject” —
(Interjection)— that's right. There was another thing
aboutthe mistakes and this is a mistake that was just
an amazing mistake. The base price was put in as of
1981 and that was a mistake by the previous Chairman
of Hydro, who, frankly | think, should have been the
technical person involved in those negotiations and
that's why Mr. Blachford has been involved. But there
is the figure put in 0f 928, 1981 costs. We've sought to
have that reflected as 928, 1980 costs, which we felt
wastherealcostand this iswhat was confirmed to us.
“These may be subject to cost increases, other than
those caused by inflation and interest allowances.

“In particular, we feel that factors such as the avail-
ability of trade workers in the Western provinces,
unusual river conditions, or unforeseen foundation
problems may result in increases in site construction
costs. The base costs of $928 million is primarily de-
veloped from the 1980 costing information. Already,
due to factors such as construction camp accommo-
dation, regulation, and revised construction details,
the 1980 base cost has increased to $947 million.

“Manitoba proposes, therefore, that capital costs
remitted to the Limestone Generating Station be put
on the same basis as transmission line costs, that is,
actual, fair and reasonable, and further proposes that
aMultiprovince Monitoring Committee be established
in order to assure that all costsreflect this principle.”
Is that unreasonable, unfair?

“It is thus recommended that Clause 1.1.5 be
revised as follows: thecapitalcostsfortheLimestone
Generating Station shall be the actual costs. A com-
mittee with equal representation from each province
shall be established to monitor the Limestone Gener-
ating Project.”

Moving out to Limestone Output: “As you are
aware, Limestone Station cannot itself generate an
average of 7,280 gigawatt hours over the life of the
proposed agreement. At the initiation of this project,
some increase in the tail water level of the upstream
station at Long Spruce is contemplated, thus reduc-
ing the output of that station and, in effect, transfer-
ring the outputto the Limestone Generating Station at
the expense of Long Spruce.” So there's a benefit to
Limestone at the expense of Long Spruce, which is
part of the remaining Manitoba system. “A similar
effect occurs when the next station downstream is
constructed, reducing theoutputatLimestone. Mani-
toba proposes that this be taken into account in the
cost-of-service analysis. It is necessary that the
agreement include provision for either reducing the
amount of energy in the sale transaction or properly
reflecting its cost to Manitoba.

“Thus, the following changes are recommended:
revise fourth “Whereas” clause as follows: Alberta,
Saskatchewan and Manitoba agree that the approp-
riate procedure for commencing to obtain such bene-
fits would be through the sale from the Province of
Manitoba to the Provinces of Saskatchewan and
Alberta equivalent to the net increase in the actual
power production of the Nelson River attributable to
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the Limestone Generating Station.”

Again, we're saying that one province shouldn't be
subsidizing another province and there’s a loss to the
Manitoba generating system from this. Is it a fair and
reasonable request to make that type of request for
modification?

Now. “Sale of power is the amount of power equi-
valenttothenetincreasesin theactualpowerproduc-
tioninthe Nelson Riverin any year attributable to the
Limestone Generating Station. Two-thirds of the Saie
Power will be sold to Alberta and one-third to Saskat-
chewan. Conversion and transmission losses will be
prorated to each producer at points of delivery. The
sale of the “Sale of Power™ at 40 percent of capability
on completion will commence December 1st, 1988,
rising to 60 percent by August 1989, and 100 percent
by September 1990, and will terminate March 31st,
2023." And 2023. | mean, that’s a significant number.

So the interesting thing is when you put this thing
forward, what you have are statements from the
Leader of the Opposition. Whenyou put the facts on
here, who are you trying to kid?

“Benefit sharing” —(Interjection)— which is Doug
Duncan? Which Doug Duncan are you referring to?
That is the interesting thing. You see the character
assassination thattakes place under the Conservative
Government? Some time in August of 1981, | believe,
a new General Manager of construction was hired
whose name is D.S. Duncan and when | raised that,
what did he say? Who in the hell are you trying to kid,
Doug Duncan, your hack, your . . . If we have ever
had a concrete example . . .

HON. S.LYON: Mr. Speaker, on the point of order, |
am quite happy to acknowledge that the D.S. Duncan
he refers to is the intelligent D.S. Duncan. Thank you.

MR. SPEAKER: | doubt that was a point of order.
The Honourable Minister of Energy and Mines.

HON. W. PARASIUK: What we have just witnessed is
the instant character assassination, the slander, that
is the concrete example of the McCarthyism that is so
much the character of the Leader of the Conservative
Party. It's so sad that when you are bringing this for-
ward, the first thing this person can do is viciously
attack the character of a person because the person's
last name happens to be Duncan. So don't talk about
the agreement, butcastdoubtupon it by attacking the
individual. We had a classic case of that, again, a
classic case of foot-in-mouth disease that is so char-
acteristic of that person over there.

They also talk about benefit-sharing in that letter.
“Section 4.0 to 4.3, which deal with price changes
during the course of the agreement are unnecessarily
restrictive. The major objective of these provisions is
toensurethatthereis a sufficientlylongperiodof time
for the buyers to recover any extra costs which they
mightincur in the early years of the agreement. Thisis
particularly important given the “front-ended"” nature
of hydro-electric cost of service, as opposed to the
buyers' thermal alternatives. The 25-yearperiod, prior
to which new pricing arrangements cannot be imple-
mented, presumably reflects current estimates of
approximately when full buyer recovery is expected to
take place.
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“However, while the principle of no change in the
pricing arrangements prior to full recovery is com-
plete acceptable” - they should recover all of their
costs - “thereis noneedto presume in the agreement
exactly when this recovery will take place, because
you can't tell. Hydro versus thermal plant construc-
tion costs, coal costs, and labour costs can never be
predicted with precision yet,they a major bearing on
whenrecovery will take place. Recovery canbeearlier
or later than what is currently anticipated. Thus,
rather than specify precise dates when new pricing
arrangements can be considered and implemented, it
would be more prudent to establish the basis upon
which prices can change andthen leave future events
to determine when that might take place.

“Manitoba does recognize that costs above
replacement power costs will be borne by the pur-
chasing province in the early years of an agreement
and that a substantial period of time may elapse
before these are recovered. However, once this rec-
overy is accomplished, the principle of sharing the
benefits requires that purchasers and seller benefit
equally without limit.” Again reflecting our general
principle that thereshould be a fair sharing of risk and
benefit.

“In summary, the Province of Manitoba would fail to
share equitably in benefits in the latter years of the
agreement, in that the draft Interim Agreement has
Manitoba Hydro sharing in the benefits on a 50-50
basis but commencing no earlier than the 25th year
and limiting the total payment to us to 150 percent of
the price determined on a cost of service basis. Bene-
fits should be shared on a 50-50 basis beginning
whenever they occur but without limiting the share of
any party.”

Then there are particular pieces that people can
read in there with respect to specific mechanical
implementation of, again, a request that | think is
reasonable, that is, fairand equitable sharing of bene-
fits once the other parties have recovered their full
cost. Now the last pointthat we had raisedatthat time
was reliability benefits. If you can recall, that's the
fourth point that was raised by the management of
Manitoba Hydro to the negotiating team.

“From the beginning of this project, one of the lar-
gely unquantified benefits of the Intertie is its ability to
ultimately act as a true electrical “grid.” This has
advantages for utilities in all three provinces. For
example, studies have indicated that the capacity
reserve in the prairie region could be reduced as a
result of the proposed Intertie and system reliability
increased. Manitoba proposes that the Interim
Agreement contain a clause which recognizes these
benefitsandobligatesthe partiesto pursue andshare
these reliability benefits.

“Thus, we would propose that the Interim Agree-
ment contain a clause which recognizes these bene-
fits and obligates the parties to pursue and share
these reliability benefits. The parties will recognize
the benefits of improved system reliability in the
prairie region resulting from the Intertie and through
reduction and reserve capacity in the region. The
sharing of these benefits will be defined in the final
agreement.

“Insummary, if the above limited modifications can
be accommodated, then it is hoped that the Ministers
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will be able to finalize the draft Interim Agreement at
their meeting in Calgary on March 15th for submis-
sion to their respective Cabinet colleagues for
approval.

"1 look forward to seeing you then.”

Now, what we then got was the Leader of the Oppo-
sition referring to the response letter from Mr. Mon-
cur, the President of Saskatchewan Power Corpora-
tion, where they put forward Saskatchewan’s position
saying, well, although it may be that these positions
arefairandreasonable, etc., they really in asensehad
been encapsulated prior to October, 1981, by the pre-
vious negotiating team. All we said is that these are
fair and reasonable things; that Manitoba should not
have to subsidize the other provinces; and that there
should be a fair and equitable sharing of risk and
benefit. But the most important position that we had
taken was that Manitoba should not be subsidizing the
other provinces. Thereason why we did thatis thatwe
believe very strongly in the Intertie, butit's important
thatthe Intertiebe developed on asolid foundation, so
that you justdon’'tgo through your building stage and
then moveon to your long-term phase and find your-
self with a whole set of misunderstandings or clauses
that you wished you had corrected. Then you get the
type of squabbling that has existed between Quebec
and Newfoundland with respect to the Churchill Falls
Syndrome, as we call it, where one party claims that
the other party is getting some $600 million. That has
souredtherelations between those two provinces and
I think makes it very difficult for any type of Grid or
Intertie developments to take place therein the future.

We believe that, since we have the potential for
many more hydro-electric projects up north; since
there is a possibility, and | would say a probabability,
that there would be further Intertie developments,
either to the east of us in the future or to the south of
us, itisimportant that we establish agood foundation
to startoff from that is fair and equitable to all parties;
and that we can build from that existing and proven,
fair and equitable Intertie example into others.

We have talked about the long-term possibility of
connecting in, probably through displacement,
through to California where | think the price differen-
tial is high. We have the people laughing, but | have
the California people extremely interested. They were
extremely interested and they found that the Premi-
er'sstatementsinthisrespect were a cause forthemto
show very concentrated interest. We hope to be pur-
suing that. We admit that we won't have that pulling
togetherinstantly, butl see finally-andlcanseethat|
see a smile on the face of the Member for Sturgeon
Creek - but we will try that over the long run. We've
only been in for seven months.

Not only are we pursuing these possibilities, we
were looking at the California possibilities or a tie-in
with the western area provinces, a power agreement,
or a tie-in with Wisconsin, and we are working on a
study there. Tomorrow | will be meeting with the
Lieutenant-Governor of Wisconsin, Mr. Olson. We'll
be meeting, discussing this tomorrow. I'llbe goingup
through Northern ManitobatakingatouroftheHydro
facilities with him on Thursday. | believe that this is an
important possibility. These are things that we are
pursuing. | find that he's giggling when the
Lieutenant-Governor from Wisconsin is coming here.
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Now, we are prepared to look at all these particular
options. —(Interjection)— No, Olson isn’t the Gover-
nor. —(Interjection)— No. not of Wisconsin. There's
an Olsonwhois the Governor of North Dakota, but the
fellow from Wisconsin is the Lieutenant-Governor
and his name is Olson as well.

So,thenwehavesaidthat wewereindeed prepared
to pursue these. What we then said is that the letter
came forward from Mr. Moncur and Mr. Eliesen,
copiestothe Albertapeople. There was a crossover of
letters atthat time. One was dated April 6th, butitwas
handedto our people. Ours wassent out on April 2nd,
1982, and againI'll read through it quickly, but | think
it'simportant to make sure that we have the balanced
truth in this respect and the facts on the table.

So, thisletterisdated April 2nd, “Dear Mr. Moncur:-

Further to our telephone discussion, the following
material has been prepared regarding the next meet-
ing of the Steering Committee of the Western Provin-
ces Electric Intertie in Calgary on Wednesday, April
7th, 1982 at 10:00 a.m. at the Chateau Airport Hotel.

“Thelast meeting in Regina showedrepresentatives
of the three provinces willing to seek compromise
positions on the several outstandingissues.” Sothere
was some feeling that we should attempt to achieve
compromise and we were doing so in good faith. “Cer-
tainly Manitoba representatives came away with a
feeling that a common ground was entirely possible.
We continuetolook forwardto anearly completion of
the Interim Agreement to the satisfaction of all sides.

“The following are the remaining issues to be
resolved on the Interim Agreement: Limestone costs:
It would appear that the manner in which Limestone
capital costsarespecifiedisthemoststraightforward.
Participants at the previous meeting generally indi-
cated the three-part approach which would be based
on the following elements: (1) The current most up-
to-date estimate of the Limestone capital cost identi-
fiedinthe Interim Agreement; (2) theactualcostofthe
project would be the actual and reasonable capital
costs incurred; and (3) there would be a process for
reviewing and controlling the costs incurred under
No. 2.” Now, that was put forward. We are here to
compromise on it, reasonable approach.

“Relatingtotheforegoingistheconceptofa“force
majeure"” clause which the Ministers discussed at the
last meeting.” There was no force majeure clause in
what they had put forward. “We suggest that such a
clause beincludedintheagreement for the protection
of all parties involved. Attached is a slightly modified
version of the wording of such a clause, as was
included Volume IV of the Western Electric Power
Grid Study.” But it wasn't included in the agreement.

“Limestone output: Manitoba continues to be con-
cerned over the nature of the commitment to the
amount of energy involved in this sale. As you are
aware, we have indicated that Limestone Station can-
notitself generate an average of 7,280 gigawatt hours
over thelife of the proposed agreement - both because
of a reduction of the output at the upstream station at
Long Spruce and a similar development reducing the
output at Limestone when the next station, Conow-
apa, downstream is constructed.

“That is why we recommended the agreement
include a provision for either reducing the amount of
energy to the ‘netincrease in the actual power produc-
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tion of the Nelson River attributable to the Limestone
Generating Station,”” which comes out to 6,600 giga-
watt hours and that's a substantial decrease of some-
thingin the order of 10 percent. So, after Conowapais
built, somehow the Manitoba electrical system would
have hadto supply an extra 10 percent of power to the
Intertie without compensation. That's why we raised
that point, “i.e. the 6,600 gigawatt hours or alternative
ensuring that the additional generation capacity
required is taken into account in the costs-of-service
analysis.”

Now, we put that forward and I'll table this. We said
that, “Given the lengthy period of discussions and
negotiationinthisarea,Manitobais preparedtocom-
promise andis willingto forego any adjustment due to
the downstream development of Conowapa.” We
were prepared to. We raised it. We said it's important;
that we were prepared to. “However, it is imperative
that the sale amount then be described as the net
increment to system energy due tothe construction of
Limestone. After accounting for lost head at the Long
Spruce station, the actual generation increase will
average 6,920 gigawatt hours. Accordingly, it is this
amount which Manitoba feels should be identified as
the actual energy production at Limestone Station.

“We appreciate the point raised by Alberta that the
per unit cost of delivering energy to Alberta rises
when the amount of energy in the sale falls because
the transmission line is utilized at a correspondingly
lower level. We hope this somewhat reduces that
concern.

“Manitoba looks forward to the discussion at the
meeting on this subject and hopefully to a comprom-
ise along the lines suggested above.” We also then
withdrew reliability benefits because we said that
there wasn't sufficient consensus on that. We went on
to benefit-sharingand we asked if we could have con-
sideration for 50-50, again because we were inter-
ested in full, fair sharing of risk and benefit. We were
negotiating and we were continuing on in, | think, a
reasonable process. | think that we had the opportu-
nity of coming forward with something there and |
think I'll table these as well. | will table these.

Now, we believe that we had taken a reasonabile,
rational approach to these negotiations. We had legit-
imate concerns. These had been raised by Hydro
management; they were technical concerns. We
wanted to protect the taxpayer of Manitoba; we
wanted to protect the Manitoba Hydro consumer. We
were, however, cognizant that we were involved in a
negotiating process; we were being flexible, but we
did not feel that Manitoba should subsidize Alberta
and Saskatchewan and that thereshould be thisshar-
ing of risk and benefit. We felt that is a fair basis for
developing long-term agreements. No one was trying
togouge, fairbasis,establishasolid foundation, move
from there.

That's why, when the Leader of the Opposition
broughtin the Saskatchewan letter which pointed out
these items and then the Leader of the Opposition
ridiculed these items, said that somehow they were
the fabrication of the socialists in the Government of
Manitoba, he was just so- here we were, getting tech-
nicalinformation from Hydro staff. One of the names
he sees on it is Doug Duncan, an immediate reflex
action to assassinate the person's character. That's
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how we lose track of certain facts; that's how we lose
track of what | would call a balanced perspective.

We felt that those points were legitimate concerns;
we were prepared to pursue them, but pursue them
with flexibility. We say that the Western Gridis agood
concept. We believeit’'sgood for Manitoba; we believe
it's good for Alberta; we believe it's good for Saskat-
chewan. We think also that the notion of an Intertie
between provinces with respect to a renewable form
of energy would be a great breakthrough. We believe
that's why we have that concentration on that. We
concentrated on that more so than looking to the
south, even though the south may in fact provide
some greater pricedifferentials because we think that
this is where the breakthrough will take place. So
when the Alberta Government says that there is a
slowdown; that they are going to look at the Slave
River Project, we still say that it is our intention to
pursue Western Interties rigorously, vigorously, and
fairly.

I think it's important to insure that we do develop
these breakthroughs, and that we do establish the
solid foundation, so that it lasts. We don't want a
situation where, if there are cost overruns, it's Mani-
toba that pays, only Manitoba. We don't want a situa-
tion where, if there is reduced outputin a system, we
are the ones who lose. We don't want a system where
there isn't a fair sharing of the benefits over the life-
time of that agreement. Again, we put those forward;
we say, we can develop that approach without having
togotocourts and squabblesin the future; we believe
that this one - and we think, you know, we can't predict
the timing of it - will establish a base for future devel-
opments. That is our intention. We can't predict the
timing of it. We certainly aren't in a position to deal
with the impact of, say, the Alsands Project being
cancelled.

I might note that the Slave River Project is in the
same geographic area as the Alsands Project, which
was going to be a big employment creatorin Alberta.
Now, that is cancelled and there are a whole set of
people there who are already living there; who were
expecting to work on the Alsands Project. Maybe,
from Alberta's perspective. it makes sense for them to
be looking at the Slave River Project. But, at the same
time, we do believe that the long-term future of a
Western Intertie still makes sense. We intend to
pursue it, as we said, we intend to pursue it in a fair
way.

Now, | think we can do that without trying to jeo-
pardize the negotiations, without attacking another
province, or without attacking individuals. We haven't
done any of that. That's the approach we certainly
want to take with respect to the Western Power Grid;
that's the approach we certainly want to take with
respect to the Pulp and Paper Complex at The Pas. We
have a lot of material regarding weaknesses of things
that happened in the past. Butit'snot our intention to
dwell on the past, but to rather try and establish a fair
system and a good system whereby we can stabilize
that plant over the future. That's the approach that
we're taking. | think | would rather have something put
togetherinaconstructive way. I think we have worked
with the management and the workers to pursue that.
We know that there are arange of optionsthatarevery
dependent upon market conditions, but we certainly
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are pursuing that, knowing full well that there are a
whole set of market conditions; knowing full well that
somuch of the forestry industry indeed is operating at
idle capacity right now. So that's the approach we
want to take on the pulp and paper complex.

Now, the other thing is the Alcan Project that has
been referred to and been referred to a number of
times. What | find interesting here, you know, - and |
don’'t know if any of the members opposite have read
the Alcan Manitoba update of June 1982. We received
ittoday. Wereceiveditfromacompany thatl think we
have an ongoing relationship with, indeed, | must say
that | am going to be viewing the smelters in Arvida
and Grande Baie when the Session ends, some time in
July,andImightpointoutthatMr.Morton argued that
we should make sure that our timetables were such
that he could accompany meon that. Thisis the Pres-
ident of Alcan Aluminum. | must say that | think that
reflects the approach of acompany that wants to keep
an ongoing relationship, just as we do. | think it’'s a
valid approach. | commend them for the approach
that they have taken.

We in fact have been dealing with them in a candid
wayandinathorough anddisciplined way. Youknow,
we have the President saying that they have post-
poned the decision and there's aquestion and answer
part in the update. It's interesting that they put this
forward. What | find interesting about their putting it
forward is, obviously, they must have heard some of
the wailing that's been coming from the people on the
other side who are trying to undermine the ongoing
relationship between the Manitoba Government and
Alcan Aluminum. | point out that they say that the
company came to the decision at this time. This is
tracedto the present recession. They said that Mani-
toba just didn't cancel the project because it is an
attractive location. They also respond to a question,
“A number of people are saying the postponement
wasreally the result of the present government’s elec-
tion and policies?” That's the question. You know,
who said that? Well, | think generally, it has been
Conservative members who have said that and this is
Alcan’s answer.

It's in writing - June, 1982, Mr. Morton says, “That
couldn’t be further from the truth.”

Now, when Iraisethat, wehave peoplethensaying,
well,isthat alie on the part of Alcan? | don't think so.
They're being straightforward. “Our decision was
based only on economic considerations. | want to
make that crystal clear. The government understands
that. | think you have only to look at the world’s pres-
ent economic situation to understand that. Our West-
ern World leaders are most concerned about the state
of the global economy and their recent meeting in
Versailles outlines some ofthe financial problems we
are undergoing.”

This is the other point that | find interesting. Is
Manitobareally that much of a priority for Alcan when
you are committed to expansion in Quebec and Brit-
ish Columbia? Morton: “It was well-known before we
embarked on our studies in Manitoba that the moder-
nization of rebuilding of our facilities in Quebec and
the expansion of our B.C. operationwerepriorities for
us. This was no secret.”

So, what we have is Alcan saying one thing and the
Conservative Party saying exactly the opposite thing
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with again, | guess, the innuendos against us. | cer-
tainly hope thatthey are casting no innuendos against
Alcan because we are not making these statements; it
is Alcanwho is making these statements. Why did you
take the decision not to exercise your options on the
land in the Rockwood area, is the question raised
here? And the answer is, “Our timeframe for reas-
sessment in the final decision on Manioba was too far
down the road to exercise the options. You can't
expectlandowners, mostly farmers, to suspend major
decisions in capital expenditures related to their farm-
ing activity for along period of time. That wouldn't be
fair,” says Alcan.

So that is the position that they take and we have
their word on it. We are still working together; we are
still continuing the joint review; we will be taking a
look at their smelters. We will in fact be trying to
develop an understanding so that, if and when - and
when is when, not if - economic conditions improve,
we can be in a positionto move quickly. You know, on
that basis, they have said that they are interested in
that site still. It's a valid position for them to take.
—(Interjection)— no, it's not a matter of starting all
over again. | think it's important that the Member for
Sturgeon Creek understand that Alcan has been in
New York and Mr. Culver hasjust been talking to the
Financial Analystthereandhe had madeitclearthat it
was important for them to cut their sales and to trim
their sales in the light of the extreme current reces-
sion. That is indeed what they are doing.

When we have Alcan making those types of state-
ments but the Conservative Party not willing to look at
these facts, but rather trying somehow to cast doubt
upon all this; that is the approach that they take. If |
say this is what Alcan says, I'm called a liar and that’s
why | was pleased actually to see this update come
out. It's not my words; these arethe words of Alcan. |
find again, the character assassination whenever one
refers to any of this. As | said, | think that political
approach has to stop.

Now, whenwe come onto potash, we've dealt with
IMC. Throughthe course ofthelastfewmonths we've
worked with them; we've shared costs that had been
incurred in the past for drilling. Manitoba has paid its
fair share of those. There have been meetings between
my negotiating team and IMC; there has been con-
stant communciation. As | said before, | have been
trying for a period of time now to arrange a meeting
with senior officialsof IMC. Thathas been confirmed
for, | believe, it's July 9th. | am hopeful that we can sit
down and talk about what the options mightbe for the
future, especially in the light of the current, very
severesituation in Saskatchewan, where you have five
mines closed down; where you have well over 1,200
people laid off and where there is complete uncer-
tainly as to what the future might hold with respect to
those mines.

So that’s the approach that we are taking there.
Again, in all these instances we are pursuing what we
consider to be legitimate concerns that have been
developed by staff who have been involved in this,
sometimes forsome time, whohaveputforwardthese
concernsinalegitimate matter. Some ofthese people
are people who were part of the previous administra-
tion group of advisers. We have asked them for their
comments. They have provided us with comments
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that do entail concerns and it’'s not my intention to
bring those concerns here and to table them, because
it would be rather my intention to sit down with these
other parties and say, these are our concerns; what
are your concerns? Is there any way in which we can
be flexible enough toaccommodate each other'scon-
cerns and satisfactory arrangements that will have
long-term benefits? We hope to do this.

This is the approach that we havebeentaking. This
is the approach that, given the uncertainties of tie
economic times, is a slow moving approach. Often
people are far more caught up - and I'm not talking
about future developments over the last while - but
rather these people have been far more caught up with
mine layoffs, plant layoffs, smelter layoffs, potash
plant layoffs. That's what's been occupying so much
of the decision-making time of many of the people in
the industry that we've been dealing with. They have
to talk to their financers; they have to talk about res-
tructuring their debt; they have to talk about their
future credit ratings, and that’s why that process does
indeed take some time.

As | said, these will be difficult tasks in these tre-
mendously severe economic times but, as | said, we
will pursue them. We are pursuing them seriously and
rigorously, butweacknowledge and| thinkit'simpor-
tant for all of us in thisLegislature and for the public of
Manitoba to acknowledge that we have an economic
reality outthere; thatwecan'tputall of oureggsintoa
mega basket; that if we look around atthe world, none
ofthe megaprojectsaretaking place. Why? You have
world-wide recession; you have low demand; and you
have tremendously increased interest rates.

So that means that none of the mega projects are
going. That doesn’'t mean that they're not good; that
doesn’'t mean that people shouldn’t pursue them and
sort out the fairest possible deal, and that indeed is
what weare doing. But we have to always come back
to what Manitoba is. Manitoba is an economy that is
characterized by small and medium-size businesses.
It is important that we do not turn our back on that
group; it is important that we work fully to ensure the
fullest development of all aspects of our economy.

That's why, when we talk about an Interest Rate
Relief Program relating to business groups or to
farmers; or when we talk about a Beef Stabilization
Program, wearetalkingaboutgroupsthat, if you start
adding them all up, they themselves constitute indus-
tries which indeed are megaprojects. We should look
very closely at our indigenous mega projects. One of
the areas where we do have some developmenttaking
place now, and | say that this has been an improve-
ment over past years, is the whole area of, say, Flyer
buses. You know, people might talk about mega pro-
jects, but Flyer buses employs 570 people, so it's
important that we not turn our backs on that type of
industry. [t's important that we realize it is thatindus-
try that is indigenous, that is here, that we have to
relate to, but that we do see that is the economic base
we should build from, that we will relate to the mega
projects, that we will harness them in the best way. We
want to be constructive on this side of the House; we
do not want to attack individuals. We do not intend to
leave —(Inaudible)— What we want is to understand
our economy; we want to understanditsreality and we
want to improve our lot within it. We do have a four-
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year mandate. We are working in those difficult eco-
nomic times. We intend to pursue that mandate, to
build and improve our economic lot, and we certainly
will be prepared in three-and-a-half or four yearsto go
before the people and be judged on what we are
doing.

MR. SPEAKER: Order please. Are you ready for the
question? Order please.

MATTER OF GRIEVANCE

MR. SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Stur-
geon Creek.

MR. F. JOHNSTON: Yes, Mr. Speaker, | have not
spoken on a grievance this Session. | won't be more
than a few minutes, Mr. Speaker, at the most. | don't
request the privilege of being designated or anything
of that nature.

Mr. Speaker, | just wanttosay that the Minister has
givenus averydetailed outline of some of the negotia-
tions that went on over the lastthree or four years. Mr.
Speaker, the negotiations that he speaks about were
made very plain in the letter that was tabled by my
Leader today. As a matter of fact, the items that he
read from, Mr. Speaker, were about February 8th and
the letter that we were speaking of is about April 6th.
Mr. Speaker, really the situationthatisinvolvedisthat
the Minister was basically saying he couldn’t handle
the negotiations.

Very very simply it came back that the letter from
Saskatchewan said that all of these things had been
discussed before, all of theseitems had been in nego-
tiation before, had been thoroughly put before the
three Ministers, had been probably put before the
three governments, and the Minister doesn't
acknowledge the fact that the Chairman of Hydro of
Saskatchewan wrote back and said, we have been
through all of this before. We've been through all of
this before and we cannot accept it.

Mr. Speaker, the Minister reminds me and heis akin
to what really goes on in a western bar; he goes run-
ning through the swinging doors with his ideas; he
gets thrown out on his butt; he packs up hisbagsand
goesbackin again and he gets thrown out again. Mr.
Speaker, the Minister has gone into these negotia-
tions fully aware of the negotiations that went on pre-
viously, fully aware of the fact that the other govern-
ments had discussed them, but he was going to
changethe whole situation, and he was going to make
the negotiations be exactly what he wanted.

Now, Mr. Speaker, the Minister went into the nego-
tiations onthe basis that he was goingto changethem
and he talks about the election campaign. | don't
intend to talk about that except | know during the
election campaign their party said they wouldn't buy
any ofthesenegotiations, and they didn’t. They didn't
buy Alcan. You know, he talks about Alcan; he reads
from an article involved with Alcan, he reads very
clearly from it, and he also says, you know, thisis the
economic situation, and Alcan is presenting an eco-
nomic situation.

Really, | like to sort of read between the lines, and |
can tell you this, Mr. Speaker, that Alcan had nego-
tiated for three-and-a-half years. They then started to
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deal with a government that was not favourable to
what their plans were for Manitoba. They dealt with a
government that was not agreeing they should locate
where they wanted to locate. They dealt with a gov-
ernmentthat said, we cannot tolerate, or will not think
about aminority interestin apower plant, and | say to
you this, Mr. Speaker, if you, or any of you, if the
Minister was in Alcan’s position, what would he have
done? He would have said, now, it's all very fine for the
gentleman on the other side to stand up and say that
the negotiations are still going on. Mr. Speaker, | said
in this House awhile ago, when we firststartedto deal
with Alcan within my department, they said the win-
dow was open for Manitoba and they would investi-
gate it now.

The window is now closed for Manitoba. They are
going to expand - Mr. Speaker, | wish Andy would be
quiet, orthe Member for Springfield. —(Interjection)—
Well maybe | will and maybe | won't. But the Minister
goes on, and he says that the negotiations will be
carried onin Manitoba. Alcan is going to expand their
Arvida Refinery, and you know what they're going to
do after that? They're going to look all over the coun-
try as to where they go after that, and if the negotia-
tions had been properly handled by that government
over there they wouldn’t be looking, they would be
coming to Manitoba. That's what they did. They blew
it.

On the Power Grid, Mr. Speaker, there is absolutely
no evidence that the Power Grid was put to rest
because of economy. The Power Grid at the begin-
ning of it was marginal. It was decided after long
negotiations, after information from the Hydro and
after the information of the utility operatorsin Alberta,
with the information they gave their government, with
the information that Sask Power gave their govern-
ment, with theinformation which the Ministerread out
tonight, which was given to our government; all of this
information was put together.

What was happening as far as the Western Intertie
was concerned? Basically that there were three peo-
ple who were interested in the development of West-
ern Canada. Three Ministers and governments that
knew that if Western Canada had the Intertie it would
beinapositiontohaveoil, coal, all of the gasand all of
the hydro it needed to attract all of the industry that
could come to Western Canada. You had three
Governments that were interested, without any Fed-
eral Government involvement working towards hav-
ing Western Canada and the Prairie Provinces the
most desirable place to have investment in the world.
And now | say to you that this Minister, as far as I'm
concerned, can go down in the history of Manitoba
and this government as ruining, at least putting back
the potential of Western Canada at least 20 years, and
that is fact.

Mr. Speaker, | hear from that yapping little voice
over there again and he knows very well that in Com-
mittee the Hydro people said it can't be done. He
knows very well that in Committee the Hydro people
said without the Inter-tie, without Alcan, it can’t be
done; he knows all of these things. What he doesn't
really care about, as far as I'm concerned, and what
this Government doesn’tseem to care about is the fact
that they have set the economy or helped to set the
economy of Western Canada back at least 20 years.
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Well, Mr. Speaker, | would like one of them to stand
up overthere and tell me in their five-yearproject what
they have to replace $3 billion worth of investment in
Manitoba. Wehave provenin all our Estimates discus-
sionsthatthe potential was there. We have proven that
we have put all of the facts before you thatthe negotia-
tions had been going on for years, and all | know is
that the Minister of Energy, basically, if you want to
boilitdownto that,waskicked out of the negotiations.
That's really what happened. If he has to go back, he
has to go back with hat in hand, because they had
some negotiations that were going to make Western
Canada the best place to invest in the whole of the
world, and | say that sincerely, because tell me where
anybody could have had hydro, could have had oil,
could have had gas, and could have had coal; tell me
wheretheycould havehadit? The three Ministers and
the three Governments were working towards doing
that and because, as my Leader has said, of an ideo-
logical situation where they went through an election
saying, we knew better than anybody else, we were
going to put the whole thing back in perspective, and
really atthe end of his speech he started to talk about
the small business people of the Province of Manitoba
and building on.

I say, Mr. Speaker, the small businessmen of Mani-
toba will build. They will build towards looking at
Western Canada, but they needed sincerely to have
those projects in the Province of Manitoba for them to
build around and build on. There is nothing for them
to build on at the present time. There isn'teven the
hydro projects that went on during the Schreyer
regime. They're not there; they won't be there. So he
talks about building on the small business. Where is
the small business going to sell their product? Let's
put it that way.

He also talks genuinely, sincerely, about selling
power to United States, so that United States can
build its industry, instead of building the industry in
the Province of Manitoba. Instead of usingour power
resource tocreate jobs within this province, the Minis-
ter gets up and stands there and is proud of the fact
that he's going to sell our power to the United States
when it could be used to create jobs within this pro-
vince, when it could be used to create a situation in
Western Canada that could help us be the best eco-
nomical bet in the world. This Minister, as far as I'm
concerned, can go down in history as ruining that
whole thing, and regardless of what he tables, he
botched it, he gotkicked out of negotiations, he basi-
cally can't go into negotiations with the others any-
more without going hat-in-hand, and he had the abil-
ity, he had the opportunity | should say, to be able to
negotiate and bring this thing to fruition. He didn’t do
it, Mr. Speaker,anditdoesn’'ttakelongtosaythatthis
Government and that Minister blew it very sincerely.

MR. DEPUTY SPEAKER, Jerry T. Storie: Are you
ready for the question? The question before us it the
proposed motion that the Honourable Government
House Leader that the Speaker do now leave the Chair
and the House resolve itself into a Committee to con-
sider of the Supply to be granted to Her Majesty.

MOTION presented and carried and the House
resolved itself into a Committee of Supplementary
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Supply to consider of the Supply to be granted to Her
Majesty withthe Honourable Member for River Eastin
the Chair.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
BILL NO. 59 - SUPPLEMENTARY SUPPLY

MR.CHAIRMAN,P.Eyler: Committee come to order.
In accordance with Rule 64(9)(a.1) and 64(10), the
first items before the Committee are formal voies
requested on two resolutions dealt with after 10:00
p.m. last night.

The question before the House is:

RESOLVED THAT THERE BE GRANTED to Her
Majesty a further sum not exceeding $100,000 for
Labour and Manpower, General Administration, for
the fiscal year ending the 31st day of March, 1983.

QUESTION put, MOTION carried.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I'd like to make it clear that the
members do not want a count out on this resolution.

Second Resolution - RESOLVED THAT THERE BE
GRANTED to Her Majesty a further sum not exceed-
ing $910,400 for Community Services and Correc-
tions, Rehabilitative Services, for the fiscal year end-
ing 31st March, 1983.

MOTION presented and carried.
RES. NO. 12 - HEALTH

MR. CHAIRMAN: The next item for discussion is
Health. Does the Minister wish to make some prelimi-
nary statements?

Resolution No. 12, RESOLVED THAT THERE BE
GRANTED to Her Majesty a further sum not exceed-
ing $758,900 for Health, Community Health Services,
Dental Services: forthefiscal year ending 31stMarch,
1983.

The Member for Fort Garry.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, this item was first
looked at last night and deferred until today because
some questions that | put to the Minister of Finance
required reference to the Honourable Minister of
Health and I'd like to explore them with him for a
minute or two.

My main question to the Minister of Finance, of
course, was what is the $758,900 for? He explained in
his answer that approximately $400,000 of it,
$400,000-plus, is for age expansion in the Children’s
Dental Health Program. | don't believe that he con-
firmed that there was any geographic expansion and |
would ask the Minister for a comment on that point.
Certainly if it's to accommodate age expansion it's
explainable and justifiable in those terms. But that left
anamountin excess of some $300,000which the Min-
ister of Finance said was going toresurrect the Dental
Nurse Bursary Program at Wascana Collegiateand to
fund some dental nurses in that bursary program.

Idon'trecallanyindication fromthe Minister during
discussion of his Estimates that he was headed back
into a resumption of that arrangement with Wascana
College, or a restoration of the Dental Nurse Bursary
Program. However, it may have been noted during his
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Estimatesanditmayhaveslipped my mind, butldon't
recall any detailed examination of it. | was not aware
that he'd had discussions either with his departmental
personnel, or with the Manitoba Dental Association,
which satisfactorily resolved the longstanding dis-
agreement between government and the dental pro-
fession as to the utilization of the dental nurses.

So my questions to the Minister of Finance were
targeted to those two areas, Mr. Chairman, and I'm
happy that the Minister of Health is available to
respond to them at this time.

MR.CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Ministerof Health.

HON. L. DESJARDINS: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the hon-
ourable member is absolutely right. During the Esti-
mates | think | mentioned that we were exploring the
possibility of having to see what direction we were
going with the Manitoba Dental Association and |
couldn’t give too much information at that time. | said
that | would, probably during the Supplementary
Estimates, because | did announce during that time
that there would be some money that we would
request through Supplementary Estimates.

I might say that | don’'t have too much to report at
this time exceptthat the discussions are going on very
well. There's been good co-operation and there hasn't
been any decision as yet. Attherequest of the Dental
Association, they asked if they could submit a plan,
they did this. There hasbeen quite a bit, or very good
co-operation, | couldn't ask for any more. | visited
some of their facilities also and they asked for more
time and we're still going at it with an open mind.

Now the economic situation the way itis, there's no
expansion geographically, the member’srighton that
also, it is just the question of age because we feel that
this is number one because we want to complete the
program, those that started. | think it would be a mis-
take if we started somewhere else and abandoned
these people. Wewantto seethemuntilthey graduate
and every year there'll be another year. So that is
number one. That will be done this year.

The other thing, they asked for time, and | told them
that the most difficult time was the situation of the
dental nurses because in discussions with Saskatch-
ewanitwas feltthat we had to make reservations fairly
soon, so that is understood. The Dental Association
has been apprised of this information, this decision,
there’'s no objection there at all. The situationis that
we will need dental nurses to continue the plan the
wayitis. If wedecideto go with strictly dental nurses
or maybe akind of mixed program, we would need the
dental nurses and then I'm assured that the dentists
themselves feel that - | think many many more of them
now feel thevalueofthese people, sothatisnoindica-
tion at this time that we accept any plan or that we're
going definitely to strictly dental nurses at all, and that
is the understanding that we have with the Dental
Association. So all | canreportis that we're progress-
ing. Because of the economic situation we are not
going to do much more than that. We will do, as | say,
the question of age, we did request - we're requesting
through the Department of Education - to place
nurses in Wascana and then we will continue. We'll
have moretimeto continue and give the Dental Asso-
ciation afair chance toreally put forth theirprogram -
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that has been discussed with staff - and there is no
decisionatalland we'regoingatitwithanopenmind.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, the Minister says
the dental profession is now much more accepting of
the dental nurses than it was some five, six, seven
years ago, or words to that effect. | hope I'm not
quoting him out of context or misquoting him. That's
the impression | got from his remarks. Is the Minister
saying that the Dental Association is considering
changing theirown bylaws in their profession, which
has prohibited certain procedural performances and
activities by dental nurses?

HON.L.DESJARDINS: | wantto make itclear, I'm not
suggesting that they're in favour, they're changing
their mind, that they are favouring a program like we
had where we went to dental nurses, that's not what
I'm saying. I'm saying that the Dental Association see
the value of the dental nurses and they realize that we
can’t keep on while we're in discussion with them and
doing nothing, and take a chance that we have no
programsatall. Theyrealize thatifwegotothe former
planorif we go to a mixed plan, we'll need them. But
what | meant by that is, if they themselves see the
value of them - and many like to work with dental
nurses - now it is true, I'm aware of what their bylaw
says, officially the Association doesn’t recognize the
dental nurses butthey arelookingatthatwithanopen
mind. It's an open mind on both sides, | think that
they're co-operating, it's not just the governmentside,
and that is something. They've agreed that this is one
of the first things that we would resolve. They realize
and they've been informed that we want to apply for
places to go ahead with the dental nurses. They see no
problem with this at this time.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, I'd appreciate the
opportunity for just half a minute to make it perfectly
clear that | have no quarrel with the qualifications of
the dental nurses and never have had. | think they're
extremely highly qualified and in most areas in which
they haveserved, if not indeed in all areas, the public
whom they have served-has offered ongoing testim-
ony to the excellence of their qualifications.

As the Minister readily acknowledges, there has
always been that professional stumbling block where
the Manitoba Dental Association is concerned and
where their bylaws are concerned. | refer, as he
knows, specifically to the bylaws, which state that,
“Unsupervised work in the mouth for certain dental
procedures can only be performed by graduates of a
recognized dental college,” in other words, a college
equivalent to the Manitoba Dental College with a
graduate degree of Doctor of Dentistry.

So that stumbling block has always been there and
it's prevented the close alliance and liaison of the two
professions, the two disciplines, the dentist and the
dental nurse in many respects, and it has prevented a
widespread of utilization of the dental nurse up to his
or her full capacity alongside professional dentists in
delivery oftheplan. | would hope the barriercanbe
breached and there can be a common meeting of
minds on the value of the dental nurse. So I'll await
further reports from the Minister on that objective,
with interest.
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I would like to ask him, Sir, with respect to the
amount in this appropriation that we're voting,
$758,900, asl've said, it's my understanding that some
$300,000 or $350,000 of that is designated for the
Dental Nurse Bursary Program. Is he telling the
Committee that a number of applicants for the Dental
Nurses course have already had their applications
processed and been accepted, and that spaces have
been reserved for them at Wascana College, and that
the money is already designated to be definitely spent
for that purpose in 1982-837?

HON. L. DESJARDINS: No, this isn't the case. |
should say that during the Estimate time, | thought
thatby thistime | could announcethe programthatwe
were going with.

| think it's no secret when we were in office before
the kind of program that we favoured. When there was
a change of government | had discussion with the
medical profession and | should say that we were
leaning towards a mixed program, but not the way it is
now, nottwo differentprograms, but try to marry them
with different responsibilities, but havingpeople work
together. My ambition was to see the people work
together instead of as adversaries and change every
time there is a change of government.

Now the relationship established with the Dental
Association was very good, much better than we had
in the past. I'm talking about ourselves now, not the
former government. They requested, well, could they
have a say before we did anything, and I told them that
they could - with an open mind. They came along way
and compromised and so did we. Now it is at the level
that the staffis meeting. Of course, the factors will be
standard - I'm not worried about standards either way,
I think their standards have been good. Another thing,
of course, will be the utilization and the cost, and this
is what they're addressing themselves to.

Now | want to be quite clear, I'm not saying that
officially I've been informed that all of sudden they
feel that the dental nurses are wonderful. This is not
the case, but it'll take awhile to finish the program of
the government. Even then we would need some more
when we go up by eight for one thing.

Secondly, if we go directly back to the former pro-
gram, we definitely would need dental nurses; and if
we haveamix,itwould be dental nurses. Besides that
it was felt that there are enough, even if we went 100
percentwith the program withthe Dental Association.
What I'm saying is that they are satisfied that these
people could be very well occupied.

One of the things I'd like to have resolved - and I've
passed that information on to the Dental Association,
they're very much aware of that - but | hope that we
couldrecognize the dental nurses. We mightgetdown
togetherto see what their dutiesare. | would hope that
we could do it that way, that it doesn't have to be
imposed on government, but | think | wanted to make
it quite clearthat there is room for paramedicalsin this
fieldofHealth, if we're going to atleast try to plateau
somewhere with the cost. | think that thisis what we're
saying.

So the point I'm saying is, that they are aware of
that, and it is not creating a difficulty, or it is not
directing the program in one direction or the other at
this time. This is one of the reasons why we did that at
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this time. This is why we felt we must go ahead and
then we’llgoon withageand | couldsay that as of this
moment, everybody is satisfiedthatwe're co-operating.
| hope it stays like that. Mind you, it won't always be
that easy; decisions will have to be made by both
sides. | hope that we can arrive with some kind of
compromise that will be the best program for the peo-
ple of Manitoba and the cost will be comparable to
what the people of Manitoba can afford.

MR.DEPUTY CHAIRMAN, J. Storie: The Member for
Fort Garry.

MR.L.SHERMAN: So halfof this vote, Mr. Chairman,
is essentially a contingency vote, is that correct? If
youlook atthe Main Supply appropriation for Dental
Services for 1982-83, it's $4,577,000.00. The credit
actual for 1981-82 was $4,257,000, so the requested
increase in Main Supply is only $220,000 which is
minimal, negligible in that program, Mr. Chairman,
andI'mthe firstoneto acknowledgethat. That doesn't
even allow for the necessary cost-price increase or
keep pace with inflation. So the Minister quite legiti-
mately has come back into the House and asked foran
additional $758,900.00. So far, so good. Approxi-
mately half of thatis to goto pay for the age expansion
in the program. That's fine; that's acceptable.

Now the other half of that is to go to restore the
Dental Nurse Bursary Program, if needed, so can we
leave it at thisjuncture, that $350,000 approximately is
really a contingency amount. The Minister is asking
forit. The Committee certainly isnot goingtorefuseit,
and if he decides to send some dental nurses to Was-
cana College, that's what the money will be used for. If
he decides not to, presumably it'll lapse. Is that
correct?

HON. L. DESJARDINS: Not quite. | guess | haven't
made myself clear. The decision to send these people
has been made and this is what | say, but even if they
go ahead, we feel that they will be needed and occu-
pied either to work with some modified program, or a
compromised program, or a mixed program, or even a
program of the dental profession. | feel confident and
they didn't seem to think that | was wrong. When we
decidedto give them more timeinstead of decidingon
aprogramnow,wesaid okay, wecanwait. Because of
the situation, we're not going to enlarge it that much,
just on theage business, but we must decide now on
the dental nurses because it takes a while to train
them. Now the decision has been made; how success-
ful will we be?

First of all, | don't think the Minister of Education
has had adecisionyetfrom Saskatchewan. Now we've
been told, | think, that we have to take 30 at this time.
That's going to cost money and | know that it's been
increased, but the decision has been made. | don't
think weneedthe approbation of the Manitoba Dental
Associaton, but because of the close relationship and
the co-operation that we have, they've been informed
and they have no objection to that at all.

| am saying that we're successful in finding the
people to meet this contract to be able to go ahead
with Saskatchewan, that they can be used in any pro-
gram, that's what I'm saying. They won'tinfluence the
program one way or another, but we could not wait to
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give more time to the Dental Association and do
nothing. We would have lost next year also; so that is
the decision. | told them that | could give them more
time providing we made a decision on that and that
doesn’t seem to worry them at all at this time.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Okay, Mr. Chairman. Well then |
would ask the Minister, does this sum then provide for
sending 30 dental nurses to Wascana College, has he
received applications from 30 applicants and is Sas-
katchewan dictating that they’ll only take them if they
get as many as 307 Is he saying that Saskatchewan
wouldn'ttake 10 or wouldn'ttake 15, it'sgottobe 30 or
none at all?

HON. L. DESJARDINS: It's been a while now, but if
my recollection is correct, that's exactly the case. Of
course, we're still negotiating. We haven'tsigned any-
thing with Saskatchewan but that is what I've been
doing.

Nowtheamount-|don’'treally pay that much atten-
tion to the exact amount to be honest with you. We
tried to see what we thought we would need this year
and | must be very honest, this was before we had
contacted Saskatchewan. There was achange of gov-
ernment and | think there's a new policy there, as this
was something that we hadn’'t been informed of
before. It might be all that money won’t be spent; it's
not more than an educated guess at this time. There
has been changes to accommodate the Dental Asso-
ciation and to keep this good relationship going,
especially in view of the fact that we weren't going to
deliver more than that this year anyway. So therefore,
it could be that we might be asking for too much
money oreven a little less, so{ wanttomakethat quite
clear.

At this time, | couldn’t say more. If once we know,
first of all, if we have an agreement with Saskatche-
wan, we'll see what kind of an agreement, we'll see
what the cost will be, then we will have to recruit. We
haven't passed that yet. We've got to be ready for
September but we waited so long to give the Dental
Association more time, so this will have to be done
very fastandifwedo-Idon'tknow-we might be able
torecruit only 25 and we might have an agreement to
send 25 or 20, but right now, fromwhat I've been told
as it stands now, we must have 30. I'm sorry, the
information - | was phoned yesterday - | didn't realize
that we would be in the House. | told the Minister of
Finance where the information was and he left with it.
So I'm sorry, | haven't anything in front of me, but the
information that I'm giving | think is quite factual.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Are there any more
questions?

BE IT RESOLVED that there by granted to Her
Majesty a further sum not exceeding $758,900 for
Health, Community Health Services, for the fiscal year
ending the 31st day of March, 1983—pass.

RES. NO. 18 - EMPLOYMENT CREATION

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Continuing with the last
item, Resolution 18, the Employment Creation
Program.

The Honourable Member for St. Norbert.
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MR. G. MERCIER: Mr.Chairman, | wonder if the Min-
ister of Labour could just break down the $10 million
figure. As |l understandit, $4 million of this $10 million
is being added to the Career Related Employment
Program. | wonder if - he's nodding in the affirmative,
Mr. Chairman. | wonder if he could explain the alloca-
tion of the $6 million that's left over.

MR.DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: TheHonourable Minister.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes, Mr. Chairman. They
have not as yet been allocated, this will be in addition.
In the Main Estimates, thereis some money - | believe
it's $1.2 million approximately for a Winter Employ-
ment Program - this will be in supplement to that. We
expect to have some of it go for Youth Winter
Employment and the balance to go just generally for
Winter Employment Programs. The programs them-
selves have not been specifically approved as yet
through the Department or into Treasury Board or
Cabinet.

MR.G.MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | wonder if the Min-
ister couldindicate when he anticipates he willbeina
position to announce those programs and the time
period that they will cover.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: | would expect that the
announcements would be madesome timebefore the
middle of September. That would be the time lapse
agreements we'd be looking at right now.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr.Chairman, | wonder if the Min-
ister could indicate the status of the Career Related
Employment Program. How many applications have
been approved? How many jobs have been approved
to date?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: | don't have it up to date, but
as of four days ago, there were approximately 2,195
applications approved, jobs approved. It is moving
ahead quite well now. There was an additional mail-
out by the department to employers who would not
have qualified for the program before the changes
were announced a week ago. Those mail-outs were
made on Thursday and Friday.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, the Minister has
indicated there have been 2,100 jobs approved up to
fourdays ago. In announcing this program, he changed
the criteria so that the program is open to municipali-
ties, nonprofit groups and the private sector and has
now changed the private sector criteria so that it's
open to employers with 50 or fewer employees. |
wonder if he has any figures on the allocation of those
2,100jobs in those three different sectors; municipali-
ties, nonprofit organizations and the private sector.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: | don't have an allocation as
between municipalities and nonprofit, butasbetween
municipalities and nonprofits are taking up about just
better than one-third of the jobs, the private sector is
taking up a little better than 60 percent of the jobs.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, as | understand it,
the criteria of the Youth Employment Program will

3501

providejobsup untilearly fall. | wonder, inview ofthe
fact that only 2,100 jobs have been created to date,
does the Minister expect to spend the full allotment of
monies towards this program which would be, |
believe, $2.4 million plus another $4 million?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: | think that question | would
beabletoanswer alittle better a week fromnowor 10
days from now. We are expecting that there will be a
significant number of applications approved within
that period oftime. Up until the end of last week, we
were approving in the area of 100 a day. We added on
some staff and expect that number will increase dur-
ing this period of time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Fort Garry.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to ask the
MinisterofLabourwhetherthe 1.5 percent payrolltax
will apply to jobs created under these Employment
Creation Programs?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the tax
will apply to all payrolls that are paid out after July 1,
1982. Thefirsttime for payment willbeonOctober 15,
1982, and | would point out tc those who are howling
in the background that last year the payment was
$1.50an hour; thisyearit's $2 and hour. Even if you're
calculating the 1.5 percent on $4 an hour, that's 6
cents an hour that comes back.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, has the Minister
had the opportunity to evaluate the impact that addi-
tional tax imposition may have on the take-up of the
program? Has he experienced any evidence thatit'sa
disincentive to employers to take up the opportunity
under the program or to take up opportunities under
the Career Related Job Creation Program?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: No, Mr. Chairman. | have no
evidencethatemployersaren'ttakingthisup. Because
ifthey didn'ttakeitup, wanted tocreateemployment,
they would neverthelessberequired to pay the Health
and Post-Secondary Education Tax. If they take this
program up, they get $2 an hour for those people.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, it's my understand-
ing that in examination of the whole Work Activity
Project sphere of government programming that
obviously the request by the Minister of Community
Services for additional Supplementary spending on
Work Activity Projects, as withany other request, had
to be worked through Cabinet. That's a request that
we considered last night and, in fact, voted on tonight.
As the record will show, the Opposition was not in
favour of advancing that additional spending oppor-
tunity to the Minister in that project area for reasons
cited, reasonsontherecordandreasons which | won't
repeatnow. But, Mr. Chairman, Cabinet obviously did
approve that additional fundingforWork Activity Pro-
jects up to the amount of $910,360 for the current
fiscal year, that being the amount which is in the
Supplementary Estimates thatwe're considering. But
it's also my understanding, Sir, that Cabinet rejected
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administration proposals for employment creation.

I wonder if the Minister of Labour could elaborate
on that subject to the Committee and enlighten me as
to what was proposed by the administration of the
Employment Services Division and the Community
Services Department in the way of employment crea-
tion activities or initiatives for which a request for
Supplementary spending was rejected by Cabinet.

Mr. Chairman, | think the Minister's attention was
occupied by another matter at the time that | asked my
question, so perhaps | could rephrase it. Committee
has been asked to vote $910,360 in Supplementary
spending for the Department of Community Services
to expand activities in the Work Activity Project field,
and | noted for the record that the Opposition voted
against that proposal because we're not in favour of it
in the light of circumstances that have been debated
and which I'm not going to repeat. But it's my under-
standing, Sir, at the same time as the Department of
Community Services and the Employment Services
Division of that department went forward to Cabinet
and asked for approval to come into the House in the
Supplementary spending request and seek that addi-
tional $910,000 for which obviously they got Cabinet
approval. The Employment Services Division of
Community Services asked Cabinet at the same time
for approval for some Supplementary spending
appropriations for employment creation, and that
request was rejected by Cabinet. My question, Mr.
Chairman, tothe Minister of Labouris, can he enlighten
the Committee asto what employment creation initia-
tives were proposed to him and his Cabinet col-
leagues by the Employment Services Division and
rejected?

HON.V.SCHROEDER: Mr.Chairman, maybelshould
answer it in another way. The amount that was
approved was an amount that we approved, partially
on the basis that there was an indication that it could
be used in the Work Activity Projects, and that we
were also getting 50 cents on the dollar from the Fed-
eral Government on that spending. We were then on
the understanding between ourselves that there would
be additional funding forjob creation. Therefore, any
additional job creation would be taken out of that $10
million, so that there would not be a logical necessity
for a further sum to be put into a specific department.
The balance of the $10 million whichis unallocated at
this time, the $6 million, is being looked at in terms of a
number of options that are available, including any
options which may come forward from that particular
department.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, isthe Minister say-
ing that any employment creation initiatives launched
under the aegis of Work Activity Projects and con-
nected to Work Activity Projects would not have been
financible onthe basis of50-centdollars? Is that what
he's saying? | am asking for information. If you attach
anemploymentcreation initiative to the Work Activity
Projects which come under the Community Services
Division and which qualify for 50-cent dollars, would
they not qualify for 50-cent dollars the same as Work
Activity Projects do?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: |think I'llanswerthatagainin
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a different way. | do not believe that we turned down
any proposals for spending that would have been 50-
cent dollars. If there were proposals for spending from
a department with respect to job creation measures
that were based on 50-cent dollars, | believe all of
those have been approved. The ones that were not
approved, and of course every department brought
something forward practically, were notinvolved with
50-cent dollars.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for St.
Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, in the last fiscal
year, the Minister signed a report to this effect, that
some 5,000 jobs were created under our Private Sec-
tor Youth Employment Program. He subsequently
stated in the House that he received the Auditor's
Report later on, after signing the Department of
Labour Report, and then observed in the Auditor’'s
Report the Auditor’s statement to the effect that he
couldn't vouch that the program actually created that
number of jobs because they may have been jobs that
the private sector would have proceeded with in any
event. | would calculate - the Minister can correct me if
he thinks I'm wrong - that for some $2.4 million, plus
another $4 million, there will be about 3,000 to 3,500
jobs created under his program. Could the Minister
indicate how he intends to demonstrate to the Auditor
that these jobs would not have been created were it
not for his program?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, | would refer
the member to the Manitoba Private Sector Youth
Employment Program, 1980 Program Assessment,
which was done by the Research Branch of the
Department of Labour and Manpower which did a
survey duringthe fall of 1980. It was arandom sample
group of the participating employers to collect infor-
mation. They state, “Some of the highlights of the
survey analysis follow. One of them is, about 51 per-
cent applied to the program to meet normal require-
ments of their operation.” Now, the question the
memberraisesisaverygoodone. How do | know that
this year, notwithstanding the wrinkles put into the
program, why is it that this year the Auditor might not
say the same thing?

I think the answer to that is that this year, when the
Auditor looks at the program, he will see that there
were specific criteria; that is, it had to be a job that
provided some training-related experience. | am sure
the member has seen the application forms. How do |
put this? Last year and this year, there are statements
on the application forms having an employer state - it
was in fairly small print-that they would not have had
that job opening haditnotbeenfortheprogram. Now,
you havethatstatement. Yet,ontheotherhand, | don’t
believe the employers were dishonest. | believe that
there's advertising that says that you can get a
summer student and people - in fact the assumption,
as shown in the survey, was that it was to assist in
getting normal employment requirements through.
There's advertising of the program and governments
want to make sure that as many employers take it up
as possible and people are in a hurry. They don't sit
there andreadalot ofit. This year- whatcan|say?-1



Tuesday, 22 June, 1982

can say that we have made the criteria such that an
employer will be required to pay alittle more attention
to how he sets up the job. There is a requirement for
some training-related experience for the student.

Itmay well be that at the end of the year the Auditor
will come back andsay,eventhatisnotgoodenough.
| believe that we have done something further than
—(Interjection)— | missed that. Al and | were practis-
ing for the ball game earlier on. | think he's tired.
Maybe we could get a pair for him. To the Member for
St.Norbert, [ think that's all| cansay, thatthereiswhat
| believe to be asignificant difference and we'll have to
see.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for
Pembina.

MR. D. ORCHARD: The Minister has just recently
modified one of the criterion of his program, in that
firms of employers of 50 can now qualify. Are the jobs
which receive approval still career related or training
related? Have there been any employer applications
rejected because the jobs they were proposing to
employ students in are not career related or training
related?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes.

MR. D. ORCHARD: How many applications would
havebeen turned down involving how many jobs?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: There's only one that | can
think of offhand that wasbroughtto my attention; that
was a casewhere afarmer wanted to hire a student for
the purpose of strictly babysitting. There was corres-
pondence back and forth. If there would have been
any indication that the student who wanted indeed
later on to go into farming —(Interjection) — not bab-
ysitting. If the student would have been given any
opportunity to be involved in the farming operations,
that job would have . . .

MR. D. ORCHARD: Sothen, Mr.Chairman, the Minis-
ter knows of one application that has been rejected
because the job for which student employment was
being offered was not career related. All the other
2,194 or 2,193 jobs created are certifiable, career
related and training related, then | take it?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: | didn’'t say that all of the
others were “certifiable.” | think that's a very good
word. There may well have been others rejected and
there may besome that were approved thatarenotto
a great degree career oriented.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Then the Minister is not con-
cerned, since he's only had one application he's had
to reject, that his program is limiting employment of
any students in the province?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, | should just
say with respect to that one student, one of the prob-
lems that we've had as well was, because it was a
suggested babysitting service, that service doesn’t
qualify and will not, even though we're passing some
legislation this Session for minimum wage standards
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or any other standards. We were not in a position
where wewerepreparedto getinto,evenif we feltthat
it was career oriented, a position where we could take
the time and trouble to get into the kind of contracts
that the Federal Government has developed with
respect to household workers.

MR. D. ORCHARD: So the Minister cannot assure us
that no students are unemployed because of the res-
trictive criterion - not restrictive criterion, I'll be less
obtuse with him - because of the criterion he's
imposed, he's confident that no students are going
without a job under his program because of the res-
triction of job training and career-related employment?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, it may well be
that we have more students working as a result of this
program, because as | indicated inresponse to a pre-
vious question, there's more than half of the employ-
ersresponding to the survey with respect to the 1980
program, which was identical to the 1981 program,
indicated that they thought the purpose of the pro-
gram was for regular seasonal hiring, regular hiring.
That being the case, and if the criteriawehavesetup
are suchastodiscourage people from using this ser-
vice forregularhiring, then itstands to reason that we
may well be getting additional jobs that are very spe-
cifically geared toward those who would not other-
wise have had job opportunities at all. | think, cer-
tainly, it's easy to say that under that program there
were 5,000jobs and under this program there may not
be 5,000 jobs, whatever the numbers are, but | don't
think that endsthe matter because of that very percep-
tion of that former program. The perception was by a
majority of employers that it was there for regular
employment.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Then | take it the Minister can
assure us that, | believe, 51 percentof the 81 applica-
tions which were regular jobs - if | can use his terms -
are those students still being hired by those employ-
ers who now are not applying through his program?
Are those jobs still available to those students, those
51 percent of the employers?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: There are certainly no res-
trictions against the employers who answered in that
fashion. In fact, | don't believe that we have any indica-
tion as to which those 51 percent are. What we're
looking at is the applications as they are coming in
and determining whether we have career-oriented
jobs.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, in view of the state
of the economy which appears to everyone to be get-
ting worse, has the Minister’'s department done any
research, as | believe they used to have, which would
give them some overview on the expected state of
unemployment in this province over the next months
and particularly fall and winter months?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: I'm sorry, | missed the last
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part of that question, the last few sentences.

MR. G. MERCIER: | was asking the Minister if his
department - | believe they have in the past done
research based on currenteconomicindicators which
appear to be getting worse and worse. Has his
department done any review of thatanddoes he have
any information on the expected state of unemploy-
ment in this province over coming months, particu-
larly the fall and winter?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, all we have is
the indications and various forecasts that have been
comingforthnationally and internationally and they've
been such as to not put us in a position to rely too
heavily on them, quite frankly. Just forexample, ayear
ago the previous government was being told that the
turnaround was coming this spring. We were told last
December that it might be this spring, might be justa
little bit later.

There was some material tabled just this afternoon
by the Premier; some of that material isratherinterest-
ing. Over the last couple of years, Chase Economet-
rics has been giving Alcan predictions as to where the
marketis going to goand although the marketis going
down like that during that two-year period, that Chase
predictions kept going down a little ways, then way up
like check marks and yet the real situation was that
things kept going down. The point is that I'm not too
sure how valid any of those forecasts areright now. As
the member knows, we're facing a new federal Budget
in a few days which might have some impact on
employment in the province and in the country.

As well, the Department of Finance has various
forecasts. The federal-provincial relations group gets
the various predictions that come out from the various
forecasting organizations, the Conference Board in
Canada, etc.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, has the Minister
received notice of any pending layoffs recently?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes, Mr. Chairman, there
have been numerous notices of important layoffs,
unfortunately. | don't have them with me, but certainly
the notices one sees in the newspaper, generally one
gets a notice of that in the Department of Labour
office before they're made pubilic.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, can the Minister
indicate the number of persons who have been laid off
or lost their jobs since last November 30th?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: No.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | wonder what sta-
tistics does the Minister have available to him in that
regard since last November 30th.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, the statistics
are there for all to see. There are no secret hidden
statistics that the department has. We issue monthly
reports-and|'msure that he getsthem. We put him or
one of the members on his side on the mailing list for
some of our national research material and there are
no other numbers.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Fort Garry.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Mr. Chairman, can the Minister
confirm or advise the Committee whether all of the
employment creation initiatives which come under
this total umbrella of Employment Creation are tem-
porary employment creation initiatives and can he
provide the Committee with an average life span of
that employment? Are we looking here at an average
of 12 weeks employment, 16, 20 weeks or what would
the median be?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: First of all, on the Summer
Employment | would expect the average would be
closer to nine weeks or so, although you can go
longer, but that's the experience. On the Winter
Employment we don’t have any finalizaticr yet on
what the program will be. | would say though that it’s
not envisioned to be permanent employment. It is
envisioned to be short-term employment over what
may well be a very difficult winter.

MR. CHAIRMAN: If there are no further questions,

BE IT RESOLVED that there be granted to Her
Majesty a further sum not exceeding $10 million for
the Employment Creation Program for the fiscal year
ending the 31st day of March, 1983—pass.

RES. NO. 2 - GENERAL SALARY INCREASES

MR. CHAIRMAN: Continuing with the Supplemen-
tary Supply, No. 2, the estimatedcostof generalsalary
increases in the several departments of government,
$9,000,000.00.

The Honourable Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | asked the
Attorney-General a question last Friday and putting
his response politely, | think he thought the question
was premature. It would appear now, Mr. Chairman,
that there is to be a settlement of the wage negotia-
tions between the City of Winnipeg Police and the
City. | don't recall the exact year, but | believe in
around 1975/76, in that area, the former NDP Gov-
ernment amended The Labour Relations Act to give
the police the right to strike.

Does the Minister of Labour - the year doesn’t mat-
ter, it's in the Statute - intend to introduce legislation
atthis SessionofthelLegislature to withdraw theright
of the police to strike in Manitoba or in the City of
Winnipeg and introduce legislation which would
involve binding arbitration?

MR. CHAIRMAN: TheHonourable Attorney-General.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, just two points, Mr. Chair-
man. The first statement is much more in sorrow than
in anger. I'd like to say this to the Member for St.
Norbert. On Thursday last, acting what | thought to be
in a responsible way and as | imagined things should
takeplaceinthisHouse, | approached the Member for
St. Norbert and | said, | want to speak to you in confi-
dence. There's this situation with respect to the police
strike. I've had communications which indicate there's
abasis for settlement that would involve arequest that
would come in from both parties for such legislation
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and | think you should know about it, so that if in fact
that's what happens and legislation is introduced, you
should know about it. | said. I'm taking you into my
confidence on that.

The following day, he rose in question period and
breached that confidence. | don’t think that should
happen and I'm sorry that it did and having learned
that lesson, | will not . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order please. The Honourable
Member for St. Norbert on a point of order.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, the Attorney-
General is quite correct in his statement tothe House,
that he spoke to me on Thursday. When | asked the
question of him on Friday, | indicated clearly in the
preamble to the question that based on the news
reports which were on the radio, which were in the
newspaper, asked him the question about his inten-
tions for the House.

HON. R. PENNER: I've made the point | had to make.
It was clearly based on the communication from
myself to the member and the way in which —
(Interjection)— no, the thing is, thewayinwhich . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order please. | would just ask
whether this debate is relevant to the item before us.
Perhaps that would be the best way to proceed.

HON. R. PENNER: Okay. To proceed with the spe-
cific questionthen, having made the point | wantedto
make . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: TheHonourable Member for Turtle
Mountain on a point of order.

MR. B. RANSOM: Yes, Mr. Chairman, it's been the
practice in the House that when a member says that
something is so, then that is accepted by the House;
and the member has said that his question was based
upon news reports. The Government House Leader
then proceeds to say that he has demonstrated to his
satisfaction thatitwasnotbased uponthosereports. |
think he should withdraw those remarks, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable the Attorney-
General on the same point of order.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, on the same point of order.
The Member for St. Norbert has not denied that |
spoke to him the day beforeand said | want to tell you
something in confidence. He has not denied that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for St.
Norbert on the same point of order.

MR. G. MERCIER: Onthe same point, Mr. Chairman. |
indicated quite clearly and | thank the Minister for
taking me into his confidence and | wouldrespectthat
confidence, but when a matter subsequently becomes
amatter of publicrecord through the media in the city,
surely then the Attorney-General wouldn’t expect me
to retain that confidence forever when it becomes a
matter of public record. Surely | canthen standup and
ask the Minister of his intentions.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: The item before us, | believe, is
removed from the original question asked by the
Honourable Member for St. Norbert and indeed from
the reply. | would just ask that further questions be
directed to the item before us.

The Honourable Attorney-General.

HON. R. PENNER: Replying to the question which
was asked, | thought that the legislation in question
hadbeenintroducedearlier, but as the Member for St.
Norbert says, that is not the particular point. | want to
make it clear, as | thought | had, to the Member for St.
Norbert on Thursday last and as I'm sure | did in my
reply to his question on Friday last, that we would not
imposebinding arbitration legislation on an unwilling
group.

In the discussions that were held with the Mayor
and Deputy Mayor first and then in sequence with the
solicitor for the Police Association made it abundantly
clear that only if there was explicit word-for-word
agreement between the Association and the City of
Winnipeg and it came as a joint request, would we
then agree- | think that was a responsible step on our
part-bynomeanslwouldsuggestmarksa departure
from the positions taken by this party and by this
government with respect to the collective bargaining
process.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | believe my ques-
tion contained the preamble, assuming agreement as
there would appear that there is now going to be an
agreement between the City of Winnipeg Police and
the City, willthegovernment be introducing that legis-
lation at this Session of the Legislature? | appreciate
there may be some time parameters because | believe
Council is considering it tomorrow night and the City
Police Department may take the rest of the week to
complete their voting.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, recognizing that there is a
time problem, although not as acute as appeared at
first, | have taken the precaution of having ChiefLegis-
lative Counsel draft amendments to The City of Win-
nipeg Act which, in fact, follow the Letter of Intent
which is now in place as between the City and the
Association, namely, that the provisions be similar to,
if not the same as, the provisions of The Firemens
Arbitration Act. So what Legislative Counsel has done
is prepare, as | say, a series of amendments to The
City of Winnipeg Actin that form.

Subsequently, | sent a draft of thatto the Mayorona
confidential basis and to counsel for the Association
on a confidential basis and simply said this, that in
order to save time if you want this legislation in this
Session, then the two parties will have to gettogether
and agree that this is what they want and that must
come to us signed by the both parties. So that is in
place.

I have asked Chief Legislative Counsel to place the
title of the bill, amendments to The City of Winnipeg
Act on the Order Paper and it will be up to the parties
to see whether they meet the deadline. Having said
that, since in effect, there will be an agreement which
contains that provision between the parties - and that
agreement is a two-year agreement - if it should
happen that we can’t meet an adjournment or proro-
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gation deadline, then | don'tthink that either party will
feel that there's a serious problem created by that.
We'll try to meet the deadline so the parties feel
assured, but if we don't, it will not be catastrophic.

MR. CHAIRMAN: TheHonourable Member forArthur.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, | have a couple of
questions I'd like to ask the Minister of Agriculture
specifically.

Firstly, Mr. Chairman, | would ask the Minister of
Agriculture if he has any current updated figures on
the numbers of beef producers that now have their
applications in place and qualify for any form of Beef
Stabilization Program that he has in place; as well, Mr.
Chairman, the numbers of farmers that have received
interest rate relief through the Department of
Agriculture?

MR. CHAIRMAN: I'm not sure that question is in
order. The resolution appearsto me onthesurface to
be related to the salary increases in various govern-
ment departments and referring to the number of
applications that have been processed.

The Honourable Member for Turtle Mountain on a
point of order.

POINT OF ORDER

MR. B. RANSOM: | believe, Sir, that you will find that
the money in this vote is applied to the salaries of any
and all civil servants within the department and to the
extent that the funding of those civil servants bears
upon the programming within the department. The
questions are in order.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Attorney-General
on the same point of order.

HON. R. PENNER: | mean, that is really stretching it
beyond belief. Relevanceis aclearly understood con-
cept and | hope it has somewhat the same meaning
here as it does in the commonsense world that lies
outside of the stone walls of this legislative palace. To
say that because there are civil servants throughout
the system who benefit from this increase and that
opens every door for examination on this item is to
distort relevance beyond any commonsense mean-
ing. | would urge that you so rule.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for Fort
Garry on the same point of order.

MR. L. SHERMAN: Yes, Mr. Chairman, to the same
point of order. | would just ask consideration of the
Chair and the Committee for a statement that was
made last night in an indication that was given at the
time that we first began giving consideration to the
Supplementary Supply at that point in time - and
unfortunately again I'd have torely on Hansard - but at
that point in time, some member of the House made
the observation that during the consideration of the
Supplementary Supply, debate ontheindividual items
would have to berestricted to those individual items.
As a matter of fact, [ think there was adebatebetween
my House Leader and the Government House Leader.
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At that point in time, the statement was made that
when we come to General Salary Increases, that is an
open area under which all considerations can be
discussed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: On the same point of order, the
Honourable Attorney-General.

HON. R. PENNER: On the same point of order, Mr.
Chairperson, | hope my memory is better than the
MemberforFort Garry’'s hearing. What | said, and said
ittwice, was thatwhen we getto Main Supply in Ways
and Means, then | understand from precedent and
fromthe Rules and tradition, thatis, and | use the term,
a cover-the-waterfront debate.

MR.CHAIRMAN: Thank you. Thank you ali members
for their comments. | recall the incident last night and
the ruling was made that during the Supply Debate,
the question should be related directly to the item
under consideration. There was some mention of the
fact that it had been customary for a wide-ranging
debate to be allowed. My answer hadbeen that when
the Minister's Salary was up for review, that had
indeed beenthecaseand| have subsequently founda
number of Supply Debates and the Chairmen in those
instances had ruled that debate should be directly
relevant to the point being discussed.

| would ask that the Member for Arthur confine his
remarksto debate, tothe pointsthatarerelevantto the
item being considered.

MFE.J.DOWNEY: Mr.Chairman, | would wonder why
the Minister of Agriculture would be somewhat reluc-
tant to answer questions to deal with increasing of
salaries or giving of salaries to people who work
within his department. | would hope that would fall
within the questioning, particularly at a time, Mr.
Chairman, when we're seeing probably the most diffi-
cult time in the economy of rural Manitoba agricul-
ture, that he is now supporting a general increase to
the overall Civil Service atsome 13 percent, of which
funds are being voted for this $9 million.

Mr. Chairman, I'm not against people receiving
reward and increase in wages but | think, particularly
in times when we're seeing record numbers of people
going out of business, peoplein societytoday who are
having to cut back and take less, that we are now
being asked tovotean increase that is going to cause
and create difficulties for those individuals who are
paying the wagesthrough the tax dollars. We'veseen
anincrease in a payroll tax, an increase in the overall
government expenditure, whichisgoingtohavetobe
paid for by those individuals in society who, goodness
knows, are having a very difficult time with the
amounts of layoffs that are taking place, with the
amounts of bankruptcies in small business and the
generalpressure, | think, Mr. Chairman, that the funds
thatarebeing askedto be paidto the people who work
forthe governmentare alittle bit higher than what the
general publicshould beasked to pay. | would think if
you were to take a more general feeling throughout,
particularly those people who are seeing the eco-
nomic disaster that is taking place throughout Mani-
toba, that the majority of the membership of the civil
servants would not feel badly about having to take
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somewhat of a less amount of money.

Mr. Chairman, | do feel very disappointed. | feel
disappointed thatthe Minister of Agriculture has been
reluctant to stand here and provide information when
—(Interjection)— well, Mr. Chairman, there weren't
any answerslastnight. The Minister of Agriculture sits
there in his chair and what does he do? What does he
do, Mr. Chairman? There are some 15,000 beef pro-
ducers out there that he promisedto help. At the same
time, there are some 30,000 farmers out there that he
would expect to help through an Interest Rate Relief
Program, which program would have to be adminis-
tered by monies that are voted here to pay, to the
people that work for him, additional income. The $9
million that we're being asked to vote here is going
toward the payment of people who work for the
Department of Agriculture and how, Mr. Chairman,
particularly when the programs are ill-conceived and
in fact there hasn’t been any money cash flowed yet,
how can we justify paying that money thatis going to
go immediately to the people that work for
government?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Attorney-General
on a point of order.

POINT OF ORDER

HON.R.PENNER: | don'tunderstandthe Member for
Arthur. You made a ruling on a point of order and,
following your ruling, the Member for Arthur is, as it
appears to me, deliberately - perhaps not deliberately
- unintentionally, it doesn’'t matter, disobeying your
ruling on that and is proceeding to do in a declama-
tory way what he could not do by questioning. But it
amounts to the same thing; irrelevance applies one
way or another.

MR.CHAIRMAN: |thankthe Attorney-General for his
commentsandremarkthatl had notedsomeevidence
of straying from the question, but | believe there was
an attempt to stick to the point. | would ask the
member to stick to the point.

MR.J.DOWNEY: I'monlyillustrating a point, thatthe
money we're voting now that's going to go to the
people that work for government is going to flow
automatically. The people that are going to pay for
that particular increase are the people who, whether
they're in small business, whether they're people who
are labour people, whether they're people who areon
farms or whatever, Mr. Chairman, have to payfor that
cost. What I'm saying, and the question I've really
been asking, andit'snotadiversionary tactic - in fact,
Mr. Chairman, it would appear as if this particular
Legislatureisbecomingone where aperson has diffi-
culty in expressing themselves in any way without
being challenged by the government. There's a very
very sensitive group of people on that side of the
government. They arevery sensitive about the way in
which they have been exposed and | do not intend to
be muzzled by any particular Ministers or people of
the government side.

The point | am making is that people are expecting
to getan increase in wages, the civil servants of this
province, and as | say | have nothing against people
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getting an increase or more money. However, | think,
duringthe kindofeconomic times thatwe have in this
country and in this province that we have to be realis-
tic. We are now asking the taxpayers to further take on
the burden of increase in the wages to those people
who work for government when, at the same time, the
programs that were promised by the politicians and
the Ministers of the government are not in fact being
delivered, are not effective, Mr. Chairman,andare not
being put forward.

Sowhat I'msaying is, here we have apublic who are
paying increased costs in civil servants’ wages, but at
the sametime, the public who are expecting to get the
programs that are to help them aren’t really coming
about. They're totally restricted in their ability to flow
programs that are supposed to give support.

| would hope, Mr. Chairman, with those remarks
that the Minister of Finance or the Minister of Agricul-
ture or any Minister of the Treasury Bench would, in
fact, clearly state how they can justify the increase in
the civil servants’ wages at a time when everyone else
is either losing their business or their home or suffer-
ing the consequences of the economic conditions.

I then, Mr. Chairman, would ask the question of
members opposite, when in fact can | ask the Minister
of Agriculture some specific questions? There appar-
ently is room. The Government House Leader said
there wouldbe an opportunity forgeneral questioning
and | would ask for that opportunity so | could know
and | do not plan to be muzzled as | have beenin the
past.

MR. CHAIRMAN: TheHonourable Minister of Labour
and Manpower.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes, Mr. Chairman. | would
suggest that the member could start tomorrow in
question period if hewantstoask those questions. He
made some comments with respect to the difficult
economic situation we're in and he'sright. We are in
very difficult times. We also, in terms ofan employer,
hadtolook at where our employees were as compared
to other employees in the country. | would hope that
the member —(Interjection)— no, the Saskatchewan
Civil Service, the Alberta Civil Service. | understand
the Alberta Civil Service just recently settled or isin
the processofsettlingat30percenton atwo-year deal
and they are considerably above where our Civil Ser-
vice is at. The British Columbia Civil Service is just a
way way out from us. Quebec Civil Service with its
freezeis just a way above ours. So we have to look at
where these people are as opposed to the rest of the
country.

I would have loved to have heard the member stand
up and say he thinks that in times like these, we
shouldn’t be giving more than $9,500 or $9,800, on the
average, of an increase to the doctors because that
can cost us somewhere in thevicinity of $17 millionin
oneyearandthat'salotofmoney forthose very same
taxpayers whoarehurting. l agree that they're hurting
and | agree this is something that is a cost to taxpay-
ers. It is a cost that they look at, | believe, on the basis
of what is fair in terms of what civil servants make in
other areas of the country. That surely has to be a
criteria.

We have tolook at what was happening last fall. Last
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fall. the previous government settled the Autopac
Agreement at 14 percent. That's something the
employees knew about when wesettledthis one. That
was no secret.

When we came to office, we had arbitration boards
for teachers settling in the vicinity of 13, 14 percent,
plus 1-2 COLA on the second year. That was out
there. That's not something we could get away from;
we couldn’'t pretend that it had not happened. Sc
when we came forwardwith this particularagreement,
we would have preferred to have come in with less.
Certainly, we would have. We also believe that this
settlement was a fair settlement. [t was notan exorbi-
tant settlement in view of the past seven years. It was
not only the previous Conservative Government, but it
was from 1975 on that the Civil Service wages in this
province began to lose ground to inflation and to
other indexes. So while no one likes to come up with
more money, | believe that what we have done is
provide for a fair contract. Wehavegoneontoprovide
pay increases to senior management, not to all
excluded people, because there are a number of
excluded people for whom we've given . . .

POINT OF ORDER

MR. CHAIRMAN: TheHonourable MemberforArthur
on apointof order.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, I'm having a very
difficulttime hearing the answer from the Honourable
Minister of Finance with the cracking of peanut shells
coming from the government benches. It's very diffi-
cult to hear and it's a total distraction, and | am taking
what he's saying very seriously. | would hope that the
governmentmembers would change theireating hab-
its so that we could at least hear the answers to the
questions.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I'm inclined to agree with the
Member for Arthur that it is very distracting and I'm
not sure that it is in line with the decorum of the
House.

SUPPLEMENTARY SUPPLY CONT'D
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Yes, | just wanted to make a
couple of additional comments and that was, first of
all, there have been two other areas where we have
made pay increases. Oneis for excluded staff who are
not in the MGEA, who are in positions similar to
MGEA members. They are Ministers’ secretaries, they
are Deputies’ secretaries and a number of other posi-
tions of that kind. Those people have received
increases similar, that is, to the 10 percent plus $600
that other people who are in the bargaining unit, did
receive.

Seniormanagementreceived an 8 percent increase
and of course as | indicated the other day in terms of
the Cabinet itself and the Leader of the Opposition,
there are no increases other than the general MLA
increases, so that our salary increases work out to
somewhere in the area of under 7 percent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Member for St.
Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | believe this [tem
provides for $9 million. During discussion of the Min-
ister's Estimates, heindicatedthat $10 million equalled
3.5 percent of the total salary. This is a total of $19
million which would appear tobe somewhat under 7
percent of the total salary.

| wonder if the Minister could indicate whether he
has satisfied himself as to whether the total of $19
million is sufficient to cover the salary increase for
‘82/83 and ifitis, how does he account for that differ-
ence whenthe salary increase apparently is approxi-
mately a 13 percentincrease? Is there that high arate
of turnover in staff that accounts for a difference of
over 6 percent?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, | had gone
over this a couple of weeks ago with some of the
members. Yes, the total MGEA salaries were esti-
mated at the beginning of the yeartobe in the vicinity
of $333 million. There is, based on history, something
between a 7 and 10 percent turnover of staff in any
given year and when there is the turnover, there's a
period of time during which no payment is made
because a position is vacant. Also, there's a period of
time then during which, generally, there are lower
salaries paid than there were at the time that the
incumbent left. Accordingly, as | say, there's some-
wherebetweena 7 and 10 percent falloff on that $333
million.

In addition, we have already voted a $10 million
amount for General Salary Increases, so thisbringsit
up to $19 million. The 13 percent, weexpecttocostus
inthevicinity of $42million. So, if youadd up the $333
million, add on $42 million, less 7 percent and add the
$10 million back on that we had already added on,
then this $9 million should be adequate to cover the
expected total increase by year end.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Pembina.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, these are general
questions. Last night, when we were dealing with
Highways and Transportations in the Supplementary
Supply, the Minister agreed that he would provide the
next sitting with the staff numbers covered andthe job
descriptions of those additional staff. Does the Minis-
ter of Finance have those answers?

HON.V.SCHROEDER: | don’tknow what the member
is talking about.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Well, that's not unusual but, Mr.
Chairman, last night| posed some specific questions
to the Minister of Finance’s colleague, the Minister of
Highways and Transportation, inregardtothe number
of staff and their job descriptions which will be hired
as a result of voting in Supplementary Supply,
$268,900.00. He indicated he would provide that
information at the next sitting. Since he is not here
tonight, does the Minister of Finance have those
answers?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: No.
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MR. D. ORCHARD: Possibly the Minister of . . .

MR.CHAIRMAN: Orderplease. | had requested a few
minutes earlier that the eating of food and the con-
suming of food was not maintaining the decorum of
the House. | would quote Beauchesne, Citation 245,
where it says: “While members are entitled to refresh
themselves with glasses of water during the debates,
the consumption of any food in the House is strictly
forbidden.” | would ask members torefrain from eat-
ing food.
The Honourable Member for Pembina.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. A
question to the Minister of Finance. In Highways and
Transportation, we have two [tems, A and B, which
total approximately $1 million. | posed the question
last night that since we are really only voting in Sup-
plementary Supply $208,900, because Item C is rec-
overable from other appropriations, is the $800,000
recoverable presently as a part and parcel of the Sup-
plementary Supply granted tonight in the various
departmentsthatwehavevoted Supplementary Supply
on? Is the $800,000 included in their request for addi-
tional funds?

HON. V. SCHROEDER: | don't know.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Well, Mr. Chairman, if the Minis-
ter of Finance doesn’t know, then who in the govern-
ment would possibly be able to answer that.

Mr. Chairman, the Minister of Finance says why
didn’t | ask the Minister of Highways. | asked him. |
asked the Minister of Natural Resources. They didn't
know. | suspected that probably the Minister of
Finance might know how these Supplementary Esti-
mates have been drafted and whether in fact an
$800,000 recovery, which is part of this Supplemen-
tary Supply, has been appropriated throughout the
various user departments asarequestfor Supplemen-
tary Supply. Now surely somebody in this government
must know what they're asking us to approve in Sup-
plementary Supply tonight.

HON. V. SCHROEDER: Mr. Chairman, obviously,
we've got some communication problem here. We're
inSupplementary Supply (2). | don’tknow of anything
in Supplementary Supply (2) dealing with highways.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.

MR. B. RANSOM: A point of order, Mr. Chairman.
Lastnight when questions were raised onthis subject,
the Minister didn’'t have the answer. The indication
was that he would get the answer. Now, if we are
continually to encounter this type of situation where
the Minister doesn’t have the answer, says he will getit
and then doesn’t provide it, then, Mr. Chairman, that
begins to make the review of Estimates very difficult.

In this case, the item deals with General Salary
Increases. He asked the Minister of Finance. The Min-
ister of Finance doesn’'t have the answer. Perhaps he
would undertake to have it available when we deal
with the bill because we are going to havea number of
stages yet before the government has approval to
spend this money.

3509

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

HON. V.SCHROEDER: Yes, Mr. Chairman, now that|
look at the previous bill, the question makes a great
deal of sense. The Member for Pembina had referred
to indication that there was a recovery of $800,000
from other appropriations and | will undertake to pro-
vide an answer to him with respect to that question.

MR. CHAIRMAN: [ftherearenofurtherquestions, BE
IT RESOLVED that there be granted to Her Majesty a
further sum not exceeding $9 million for General
Salary Increases for the fiscal year ending the 31st
Day of March, 1983 —pass.

There being no further business, Committee rise.

Call in the Speaker.

The Chairman reported upon the Committee’s
deliberationsto Mr. Speaker andrequestedleave to sit
again.

IN SESSION

MR.DEPUTY SPEAKER, A. Anstett: The Honourable
member for Flin Flon.

MR. J.STORIE: | move, seconded by theHonourable
Member forWolseley, thatthe report of the committee
be received.

MOTION presented and carried.

MR. DEPUTY SPEAKER: The Honourable
Attorney-General.

HON. R. PENNER: | move, seconded by the Minister
of Finance, that this House be now adjourned.

MOTION presented and carried and the House
adjourned and stands adjourned until 2:00 p.m.
tomorrow (Wednesday).





